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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it ARETFT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 6 78,717,420 74,082,292
HE AR Cost of sales (55,818,003) (51,571,867)
EF Gross profit 22,899,417 22,510,425
E bz Other revenue 7 650,412 783,501
E b g A Other net income 8 874,820 1,024,195
o EHA AR Distribution costs (16,809,780) (15,708,282)
THEA Administrative expenses (2,396,714) (2,469,530)
B g A Other operating expenses (750,648) (229,996)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (446,021) (223,494)
BB ENEENAEE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 127,318 121,824
BRBE AT R Profit before taxation 9 4,148,804 5,808,643
g Taxation 11 (1,072,970) (1,424,976)
A F ERF Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
ViN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 2,632,312 3,802,482
DB R A Non-controlling interests 443,522 581,185
R Ea F Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
BRER Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic AR#46.73% AR#E67 575
BE Diluted AR#46.710 AR#67.515

170 E@EERERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
BaF AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R i F Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
Hia2mls (F8) - Other comprehensive income (loss) :
TEELEEERMIELE  Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
AERBMNEMECEME Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 33 798 (5,652)
B A AEESBRREEAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHEWEREENEZTE  designated as at fair value through
DABEEZE other comprehensive income 7,874 —
8,672 (5,652)
ARG RIEZ A ESIEE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ao kP RIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
PEH =% Exchange differences on consolidation (1,640,813) 292,959
Remsh Cash flow hedges (1,011) —
(1,641,824) 292,959
AEEHMEE(EE)WE  Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year (1,633,152) 287,307
AEE2HKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 1,442,682 4,670,974
B2 mHikSEasE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 1,124,397 4,070,213
DERIR R MR Non-controlling interests 318,285 600,761
1,442,682 4,670,974
BRAREIER

2022 Annual Report ¥
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
202212 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,832,200 1,807,100
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,259,417 21,510,028
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,625,714 3,691,741
B EE Intangible assets 17 162,480 155,970
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
iR N Interest in an associate 20 93,316 94,847
EX-VNSIL Interest in joint ventures 21 614,316 625,163
BARBEYIERE Financial assets at fair value through
BaREENS/ERE profit or loss 22 254,543 626,901
TR AAEBEYERE  Equity instruments designated as at
HL b 2 TR LA 2 R B B Y fair value through other
EHTHE comprehensive income 22 158,518 137,317
BELETIREE Deferred tax assets 34 481,923 518,605
RHEHER Long-term time deposits 26 5,841,900 5,376,900
34,422,237 34,642,482
REBEE Current assets
ENy Inventories 23 5,254,592 4,671,477
FEM R FR Trade receivables 24 1,808,281 2,043,744
A g B F7 T8 Tax recoverable 20,354 14,729
TER B REMBEUWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,897,389 2,352,553
RHEITEATR 52 BIERER(H  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 1,710,000 725,000
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 12,531 20,746
IRTTEHRNMRS Bank balances and cash 26 12,323,922 15,838,492
24,027,069 25,666,741
HEE Total assets 58,449,306 60,309,223
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
BITRRA Issued capital 27 235,741 235,633
& 10 5 (B Share premium 28 825,364 786,965
(] Reserves 29 12,310,421 17,637,378
AATRRREMRER Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
DB RES Non-controlling interests 19 3,443,949 3,748,524
RERERBE Total equity 16,815,475 22,408,500
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M2022% 12 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
HtaF AR¥TFT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
RHAEREE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 8,415,871 6,350,369
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 145,448 195,519
BITREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 69,026 79,920
RIERIARE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,298,948 1,449,910
9,929,293 8,075,718
REEE Current liabilities
BRRAREBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BRERENSRAE profit or loss 39 — 9,959
FERTER R Trade payables 35 9,489,908 9,046,518
HEMEMZEREUIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 9,783,497 9,593,331
£ EBE ZAVAE G, Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 9,203,139 7,311,444
HEmnshaE Other current liabilities 39 — 40,000
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 155,665 159,520
TEEMIT A Derivative financial instruments 31 92,729 —
BB RIE Advance payments from customers 40 2,571,730 3,342,990
TIE Taxation 407,870 321,243
31,704,538 29,825,005
waE Total liabilities 41,633,831 37,900,723
BRREZRREEHETHE Total equity and liabilities 58,449,306 60,309,223
BREBARE Net current liabilities (7,677,469) (4,158,264)
HEERARBER Total assets less current liabilities 26,744,768 30,484,218

FI170E337E AV ERREAES
E@N2023F3A27TAMERERESE
THUATALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 170 to 337 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2023 and signed on its behalf by

H M4 —BB Junichiro Ida
ZFZ Director

&% WEI Hong-Ming
EZ Director
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FERRERZHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

RAREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERER
g8 JURRER Rz
BiRA RIVEE Tota Non- [Eass
lssued Share BE  cplaland controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity

ARETR  ARRIR ARRIR ARRTR ARRTR ARRER
RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB'000 RMB000 RMB000

RNE1F1R At 1 January 2021 235422 730,075 20147227 N12,724 3,626,659 24739383
KEEEH Profit for the year - - 3,802,482 3,802,482 581,185 4,383,667
Hp2EE(5R) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERMEEZERE Remeastrement of defined benefit obligations - - 4.260) (4.260) (139) (5652)
EXZE Exchange differences on consolidation - - 17,991 7,991 20,968 292,959
HE2ELEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 267,731 267,731 19576 287307
REERANEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4070213 407013 600,761 4670974
BALNRRRZRE Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contributions and distrbution
EREERATN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - 5,075 5,075 - 5,075
RERRETEETIRY Shares issued under share option scheme M 56,890 (13,693) 13,408 - 13408
BHEREE2000K8R 2020 final and specialfinal dividend approved and paid
BRXERE - — (06226 (4062263) (63903 (4,526,166)
BHEREE 2021 571 ERE 2021 special nterim dividend approved and paid - = 250000 (2,500,000 = (2500000
N1 56,890 (6,570,881) (6,513,780) (463,903) (6,977,683)
HEERY Changes in ownershyp intrests
EEHYBIHEOHELT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
FRERY without change in control - - [9,181) (9,181) (14,993) (24,174
HRNARRZRHEE Total transactions with owners of the Company 211 56,890 (6,580062) (652291 (47889 (7,001857)
R01ENF3NA At 31 December 2021 235,633 786,965 17637378 18,659,976 3,748 524 22,408,500
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HZE2022F 12 A31 AIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BER e
88 HUERER B&
RRA RraE Total Non- BRAE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRTL ARETZ  AERTX
RMBUS0  RMBURO  RMBYDO)  RMBUNO  RMBUR  RMBYOD

RANE1A1A At 1 January 2022 235,633 786,965 17,637,378 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408,500
FERET Profitfor the year - - 2632312 2632312 M350 3,075,834
A2 ahs(FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RensHn Cash flow hedges - - (147 (747) (264) (1,01
RERFIETZEREW#33)  Remeasurement of defined henefit obligations ot 33/ - - 836 836 (39) 79
BERLABEFERELL Fairvalue changes in equity insruments designated
2ENAERENERTA as at fair value through other comprehensive income
MEEEY - - 1874 1874 - 1874
EREE Bichange differences on consolidation - - (1515878)  (1.515878) (124935  (1,640813)
Efp2EEEAE Total other comprehensive loss - — (1507915 (1,507,915) (15381 (163315)
REERENEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,124,397 1,124,397 318,285 1,442,682
EANIRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEFT Contributons and distribution
EREERNTN IR Equity settled share-based transactions - - 522 522 - 522
REEREEE TR Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
(Wiz27) 108 38,399 (9.3%3) 29,154 - 29,154
BYERIRE 2021 REIR 2021 final and specialfinal dividend approved and
TRIRERE 1) paid (note 12) - - (B3 (5D (62,860)  (4565.383)
BHERIEE 200255 5RE 2022 special interim dividend approved and
(W) paid (note 12) - - (2,500,000) (2,500,000) - (2,500,000)
HRNAREZRHAE Total transactions with owners of the Company 108 38,399 (6451350 (6:412,847) (622,860) (7,035,707
R02E12R318 At 31 December 2022 235,74 825,364 12,310,421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZ2022F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 6,022,166 7,386,100
EHFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,106,248) (1,751,040)
EENE Interest paid (440,605) (216,981)
RETHMEBRESFHE Net cash from operating activities 4,475,313 5,418,079
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 488,936 783,501
e R HTFE Increase in long-term time deposits, net 26 (1,450,000) (3,666,900)
B E & R AIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 121,957 91,681
B U — B o 7] B A Dividend received from an associate 20 17,739 20,015
BUIE A EEYIER KRR  Dividend received from financial assets
HERRENSHMEEK at fair value through profit or loss and
BEEAABEIIER equity instruments designed as at
FEEMEEUEEREIEA  fair value through other comprehensive
HEZE T ERCH income 8 1,413 2,522
HEZQAAEBEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
T8 ARER 12 assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 441,953 963,895
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
FIEFERENSEEE  fair value through profit or loss 22 (6,992) (103,187)
BABLEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 — (17,086)
BBAME - MR E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,123,833) (2,966,094)
BAGFERAEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (115,111) (14,482)
HEYE  WBENREN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
FERAEEEZE and equipment and right-of-use assets 216,920 195,778
EmnEadEomsd Decrease in other current liabilities 39 (40,000) —
U B — IR BB A A Net cash inflow on
FrigiR&m A FEE acquisition of a subsidiary — 8,829
LEMB ARG Net cash inflow on disposal
BEeRMAFHR of subsidiaries 41 116,890 250,989
EUNERZ FEE)2TE Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) (50,000) 407,000
REZHFIARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (3,380,128) (4,043,539)
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#HZE 2022512 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Mat AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BMEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERNARRREZRE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (6,452,482) (6,562,263)
BV EEEREERE 2ME  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 37(a) (623,618) (463,040)
RIRIE R T & Issue of shares under share
BT 2D option scheme 27 29,154 43,408
YNHEAE Payments of lease liabilities 37(@a) (213,967) (190,095)
IR ITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 13,434,412 3,160,010
EERTRAMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(a) (14,127,767) (4,150,754)
HaQHEE ZE8)F%  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 37(a) 3,336,763 1,251,107
XA EE D R R Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests — (24,174)
RMETBHAREEE Net cash used in financing activities (4,617,505) (6,935,801)
REeEREASEEYUN Net decrease in cash and
R cash equivalents (3,522,320) (5,561,261)
FRZBEERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 15,859,238 21,431,153
Exg@e o Effect on exchange rate changes (465) (10,654)
FRZESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 26 12,336,453 15,859,238
BRAREIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 B31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2021 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB7,677,469,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a) wmHEE (a) Basis of measurement
RER A BERRFAREE The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
AEHSEE  RIZAAEEY] consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for

R REUEHE - BARE
BIRLREEGEREEN S
BE WHERALBEIER
FHME2HBEREENER
TR -manEEIKIEER
FRESRABERITESR
B FIBEN T Z &K

o

A H Bk

investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.
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(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date, amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I B

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When an existing property becomes an investment property,
any difference at the date of change in use between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI"”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings, other
current liabilities and derivative financial instruments. All
financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(ii)

(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged (see note 3(k) to consolidated
financial statements).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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SBMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

S HEERAEMBEL.ZHE Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
(%)

BANTES Definition of default

NEBREBULNTERANLEZE The Group considers the following as constituting an event
REBEEBERNNENSEH of default for internal credit risk management purposes
BRELEHRBER  MRFEMU as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
TEAZEENTRIA K& receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
ek EE 2RO KREEN financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

BRETHE -

() BB SN IR AR R IE (i) information developed internally or obtained from
BHEEEREBHS AT external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
BRI MHEERA 8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
HBAER(TEZEEAE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FAENEAERR) ;5 or

(il REFERMBEL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TE LM ON » NEEBRA Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

B4R EEMEHBIH 0K - default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

REBENDEE  RIEREE 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BAREAAYENERERS supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRENIZET BEE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

() it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(¢ the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Group enters into and designates certain foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign currency-denominated
borrowings. The Group’s hedging objective is to hedge
the foreign currency exposure to the cash flows variability
arising from the principal repayment of the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings whilst the Group’s overall impact
on exchange difference could be maintained at a reasonably
low level. The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risks until the repayment
date of the foreign currency-denominated borrowings.
The Group hedges to the extent that the foreign currency
exposure arising from the Renminbi ("RMB”) denominated
borrowings made by certain group entities of which the
functional currency is United States Dollar (“US$"”). Under
the Group's cash flow hedge arrangement, the terms of the
hedging instrument basically match with the terms of the
hedged items, the Group expects the value of the hedging
instruments to move in the opposite direction as compared
to the value of the hedged items, and thereby ensures
hedge effectiveness. Therefore, the Group applies a hedging
ratio of 1:1. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in
these hedging relationships principally arises from any late
designation of the hedging instrument.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the
intended relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other net
income/(expenses).

When foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
foreign currency borrowings, the Group designates only the
change in the fair value of the forward contracts related to
the spot component as the hedging instruments. Forward
element and foreign currency basis spread are separated
and excluded from the designated hedging instruments
and the Group treats these excluded elements as costs of
hedging. The fair value changes of these excluded elements
that relates to the hedged item is recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. These excluded elements
at the date of designation (to the extent that it relates to
the hedged item) are amortised on a systematic and rational
basis to profit or loss over the period.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the
years when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The
movement in spot rate is recycled from equity to profit or
loss to offset the foreign exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of the hedged foreign currency borrowings. Such
reclassification from equity will offset the effect on profit or
loss of the corresponding hedged item to achieve the overall
hedging result.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
remains in equity at that time remains recognised in equity
and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and
deferred costs for hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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U]

(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs,
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

() the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group's performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until such
time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payments from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is US$ and majority of its subsidiaries have RMB as their
functional currency. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.
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(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(¢ All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(n)

(o)

(p)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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(p)

(a)

()

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(s)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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HEE) (s) Leases (Continued)

1EREFAN () As lessee (Continued)

TEEEBIUBD 2 AEEE Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a

NHREBEBREAEIEEEGHANE separate component are considered to be part of the total

SEBIE S 2 BB —EB consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

7 e components of the contract.

AREERHAEFIGHHERE The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

AEEENEERE - liability at the commencement date of the lease.

CTREEEYSIEKAGTE The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

[Nk comprises

(a) HMEBBEZYIRFER (a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
g liability;

(b)y MEBAEKZAEL 2 (b) any lease payments made at or before the
A E AT FOR AT 2 U commencement date, less any lease incentives
HEEE: received;

(0 AEBDELEZEFVS (¢ any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
BERER &

(d) AEERFHILZERIEH (d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
BiE - EEFTEH 2 s in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
HEEEREEHEEGRR restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
A BT AR T 2 AR T #% the underlying asset to the condition required by the
EEZHERAGIER terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
BARK R T R Bl & m E are incurred to produce inventories.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years
Over the leasehold
period

1 year to 5 years

Land use right in respect of
leasehold land
Machinery and other equipment

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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HEE) (s) Leases (Continued)

TERATN ()

(d) HR@ENEEREZEE
B8] AEBZEBR DL
FA#E & B P 1 (B A IR BR
B2 B REAE AL
HEEZF DKL L
THREE 2 AR s S IR
BmRAER - KHER
BZEHAEAR -

(e) HRABEHEMBAERZE
AEBERBHERREEE
EHAERE - BHER
BEzEMTEALR

TERLITAA

REEMMBEH  AEE/KE
EEHE T EAREMEERE
BHE - WHEREBEER
BREFTMI S 2 B AEE D B B
EHER MoBEARMEM
E-MAEHEMEE-—HOER
LEME -

AEEREEANANSTHER
DUNBIHEEARR  HEHA
FHEELDHHRE - AEH
BEHBIERKANZRE

PEESHEERD -

As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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(s)

®

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(v)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to item recognised in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(©)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

(x) ZH|E (x) Segment reporting
BB ZRETANBATEL Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
BRREEREANAIRE 2 with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
E‘t éﬁ( K E\,\;}HE & decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who

EEC WML ;Jﬁﬁ % £
MEBZEEREKE

are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies!"
Definition of
Accounting Estimates!"
Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction!”
Insurance Contracts "

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information !

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current /

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants®

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture !

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

Bl The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.



A HMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I N
BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

BRI RN REER

EEEFMAGERME TRAE
BASMEERER K
(BRI BBV B RELER - B i
AEMBEBRRAEZ T BRRESH N
T

BEEBEERFEI6 K ZIETE  F
BEE R RIS 70’

HREBLEEVE BEARKBEAE
B 1E % E A& pE 1T R S B T A
EHIAE MERFHNMEHIA - %E
RIABEBETEHGHRE BEER
BRERLEEAZFEENME
RERZEFERBHORA  XEMASE
AR ERE 2RO EREAERX
FIHB R ©

RMZFETA BN GV HER

EBEIEEF37H 55T - BT
BRIRI A

ZIEREBMREE LT LR E
7HAEEREEEBEME @ BT
ERMNKABEES R EZMERN
A - BERERBBOKABRE
BiTZERMEERAN (DI B
ATAMH)MERETEREXEH
B E AR AN B 5 B (Bl an - 1R BT
EEZRNOEARETARNTH
E - BmEM&RE) -

RMZFETAENGS T HRE
EEBERATE -

Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for proceeds
received by any entity from selling items produced while testing
an item of property, plant or equipment before it is used for its
intended purpose. An entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss and
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its requirement
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of
Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing
the "10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities —
in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently drafted,
Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.

B EER
2022 Annual Report ¥

233



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

0]

EREMBRENEZHAEZ)

EAFHIEE & ()

ELMBRABTEBREAR
BRPEXLERBEE MR
DEMNBZERER  FZEHN
BARARERTERE WD
o - MERBEEFENEE
PATERAR I FE 34 WEE -

BEERR XL EFERES
BR)Z TR — (AN

AEEKEMEEREERA
B2 HIE  EROAEREE
BREZ E(HAKE S IEE
ERATEREREERE) LR L
BEEREZHE(HABRAS
BT TEITERILEERE)

AEERERBEER LK LR
BRZBEEAHN - EHEASE
BRLAEMESITRERE
EEHEXTEITEERER
IEHRER S KREEgFELH
B WEBMA TR ESR
RfefEHERH K ILHE 2
MEELER - HEWEAE
EHMAETEHERABRER
REEMNGTE -

RFABBEHRE  WEEEAH
AEHHERYL ZEATHAR
LTREREMTETRERE
A TPEITHERILEREREZEXR
EHHERBERES  BIAE
B ST

234 EEEERERDE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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(i) HEFEEUZBEETEE) (i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities have
been agreed with the management of the Company. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could affect
the reported fair value of the assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company's
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group's sales and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit (loss) for the year and profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEDEE Segment results:
2022
Rk
HEME Inter-
Instant R Hft  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARBFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
& Revenue
BEPENEL 2R Revenue from contracts
with customers 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
W52 R Timing of
revenue recognition:
TEE—EER5 Recognised at a pointin time | 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
pEMFEE KA - Revenue from other sources:
REHEUREHME ZHEUA  Rental income from
investment properties — — 72,881 — 72,881
D EbEZ W Inter-segment revenue 55,443 8,014 700,353  (763,810) —
A EM Segment revenue 29,633,696 48,335,730 1,511,804 (763,810) 78,717,420
PHEZ(CMREBEER)  Segment results after
finance costs 1,839,554 2,275,213 (121,539) 20,762 4,013,990
[EREE NEIRAEDNRIELE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (339) 128,810 (1,153) — 127,318
ROBZFWA Unallocated income, net — — 7,496 — 7,496
BREBLADER (B518) Profit before taxation 1,839,215 2,404,023  (115,196) 20,762 4,148,804
A Taxation (464,685) (582,337) (25,948) —  (1,072,970)
FEEZEHN(ER) Profit (loss) for the year 1,374,530 1,821,686 (141,144) 20,762 3,075,834

EEEER 239

2022 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

SiEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2022
0 8
FEE Inter-
Instant #m Hft  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT ANREFH ARETT AREFT AREFZT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 20,015,049 34,145,275 4,710,542  (1,462,128) 57,408,738
BeNmER Interest in an associate — 93,316 — — 93,316
AEAER Interest in joint ventures 464 610,216 3,636 — 614,316
APREE Unallocated assets 332,936
WEE Total assets 58,449,306
8% Liabilities
NEEE Segment liabilities 10,844,982 20,545,661 11,430,662  (1,256,500) 41,564,805
*PEBRE Unallocated liabilities 69,026
BEE Total liabilities 41,633,831
Hirg g Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 871,679 2,335,508 179,792 (121,402) 3,265,577
B Capital expenditures 530,314 2,548,530 22,493 — 3,101,337
FBUA Interest income 285,211 409,987 13,385 (58,171) 650,412
e Interest expenses 31,984 210,063 270,236 (66,262) 446,021
HEMB A F Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36,304 69,688 — — 105,992
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SIEE : (F) Segment results: (Continued)
2021
Rk
HEM Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARETT AREFIL
RMB00O ~ RMB0OO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

[ Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
B2 Recognised at a point in time 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
REMRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REHREEEHEZHEUA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 84,134 — 84,134
DEE 2 WE Inter-segment revenue 15,606 1,954 932,003 (949,563) —
SEE Segment revenue 28,447,646 44,801,936 1,782,273 (949,563) 74,082,292

PHEE(CHBRMBEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,626,994 3,052,225 35,276 (5,847) 5,708,648
EIEB SN A RASDNAESE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 428 132,974 (11,578) — 121,824
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (21,829) — (21,829
BRBEATRA Profit before taxation 2,627,422 3,185,199 1,869 (5847) 5,808,643
I8 Taxation (623,087) (766,547) (35,342) —  (1,424,976)
REE 2T (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,004,335 2,418,652 (33,473) (5,847) 4,383,667
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SiEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2021
PRI 84
HiEHE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFr AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB00O0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 19,917,991  35239,108 5,020,610  (1,278,657) 58,899,052
BeEnAER Interest in an associate — 94,847 — — 94,847
BENAER Interest in joint ventures 803 619,571 4,789 — 625,163
RABEE Unallocated assets 690,161
HEE Total assets 60,309,223
=l Liabilities
SEEE Segment liabilities 9,018,715 20,305,649 9,531,235  (1,034,796) 37,820,803
xHEEE Unallocated liabilities 79,920
BEE Total liabilities 37,900,723
HinEs Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 831,358 2,230,326 193,056 (113,064) 3,141,676
BRAR Capital expenditures 521,388 2,448,225 28,049 — 2,997,662
FIBMA Interest income 393,426 426,996 16,820 (53,741) 783,501
e Interest expenses 20,106 89,962 177,187 (63,761) 223,494
HEMB A Alka Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 160,104 48,646 — — 208,750
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 650,412 783,501
2022 2021
(k3 AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 208,992 207,189
EARBEYEEEEZE Changein fair value of
BEEMNEMEEZ financial assets at FVPL, net
NABEEEFER 10,099 (21,239)
mAREEYR&EIBZRE Dividend income from
RIEN S BEERIET financial assets at FVPL and
BAREBEYEREEM  equity instruments designated
H K ERRIER as at FVOCl
#EE TR Z BRAA 1,413 2,522
o B A B M E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 105,992 208,750
BT 8 B Government grants 418,514 356,718
HEME - WS REMEN  Loss on disposal of property,
ERAREEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (60,288) (29,527)
5 (518 ) e F58 Exchange (loss) gain, net (30,164) 36,031
Hith Others 220,262 263,751
874,820 1,024,195
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MR (GEA) TPIIEB R -

This is stated after charging (crediting):

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B%E R Finance costs
AR S FNABHEE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REMEF 2 F BT wholly repayable within five years 429,900 204,049
ERSFNAERBEEZ Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
X — 2,867
HEBBEEEZHKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,121 16,578
446,021 223,494
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hig g Other items
ETMA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e Ko Salaries and wages 7,684,056 7,306,001
R EE RS Equity-settled share-based
T2 FIA payment expenses 522 5,075
RIRE A - Pension costs:
AEHRETE Defined contribution plans 806,408 683,997
RERMETE Defined benefit plans 5,599 (501)
ZEA & - Auditor's remuneration:
EZEH Audit fee 7,952 8,172
FBRREM Non-audit fee 866 776
BEFERA Cost of inventories* 55,818,003 51,571,867
FEMIE(GT AEM Written off of inventories
KEER) (included in other operating expenses) 364,243 34,021
e - Depreciation:
W - HeEs KRR Property, plant and equipment 2,936,451 2,827,355
EREEE Right-of-use assets 322,447 306,808
A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(EBERDHEKA) (included in distribution costs) 6,679 7,513
# EEFENAPBIEHEE T - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,802,349,000 (2021:

ME - BELRRE - FRAEEE
ZHERBEVNEERHEARYE
4,802,349,0007T (20214 : AR
#4,724,716,00070) - &S EEEIN
ST ALA LB 5 2 [ERIA 5T -
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RMB4,724,716,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation on
intangible assets which amounts are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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ARABAEERITHRAZED MR The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
Bt 2 BN /agEn T Company'’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2022
Bfre
XHREEN
Bie
DY) TR
i Xffz  Retirement
RftEe FE  paymentsand
EZhe Salaries 4 Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB000  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBU00  RMBUOO

HTEE Executive directors:
iy Wei Hong-Ming 677 5,47 2,578 143 - 8,815
FEE—E Junichiro Ida 541 17 - - - 758
REX Wei Hong-Chen 677 5,207 2,484 143 - 8,531
BREAR Koji Shinohara 338 17 - - - 555
RfEEE Yuko Takahashi 338 27 - - - 555
g Tseng Chien 338 866 140 - - 1,384
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
Gy Hsu Shin-Chun 406 108 - - - 514
TRR Lee Tiong-Hock 406 108 - - - 514
REE Hiromu Fukada 406 108 - - - 514
RS Chief executive officer;
e Chen Yinjang - 4,000 2,250 59 - 6,309
4127 16,485 7452 345 - 28,409
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2021

XA RELH

e

SABR{R SRR

B2 R 82 Retirement

s FE  paymentsand

EZhg Salaries el Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based to pension aif
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

AERTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HIEE: Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 644 5,303 2,080 731 - 8,758
HEE- Junichiro lda 515 103 - - - 618
REK Wei Hong-Chen 30 5,113 2,004 731 - 8,170
BRER Koji Shinohara 30 103 - - - 425
BT Yuko Takahashi 3 103 - - - 425
g Tseng Chien 32 598 124 - - 1,004
BUFHTEE Indievendent non-executive directors:
GaH: Hsu Shin-Chun 355 103 - - - 458
ERE Lee Tiong-Hock 355 103 - - - 458
REE Hiromu Fukada 355 103 - - - 458
TR : Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 1317 449 - 5,766
3512 15,632 5,525 1,911 - 26,580

HE2022F %2021 12 A31 81k
FEVESERSURSHFALTRE
B o

AEBRERDFEENSUREH
AEMAREEMAMEREES
MAREBEN EMERBESTK
ERALEHERE -
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No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NEFBSHUESHATBEE2MES The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
RITHARFHRQ021F 2(UEE) - Group for the year, two directors and the chief executive officer
EBaoEFZaE N EX E&20 (2021: two directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the
(2021 5F : 3fU) AT ZEN S B W analysis presented above. Details of the emoluments of the
T remaining two individuals (2021: three) are as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e hHMME Salaries and other emoluments 11,000 14,011
VAR 19 32 54 2 58 Share-based payments — 208
BRI NREES Retirement payments and contribution
IRIRSET B to pension scheme — 7,470
TE4L Discretionary bonuses 6,371 7,605
17,371 29,294
S 262(2021 F - 3R HBEmF AL The emoluments were paid to the two (2021: three) highest paid
ZBESERIMT individuals as follows:
EBEAE
Number of
individuals
< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2022

AR 8,624,601 TZE AKE¥ 9,055,830 7T RMB8,624,601 to RMB9,055,830
(10,000,001 8 7T% 10,500,000/ 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2

BB AH
Number of
individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2021

ANR¥8,288,333 LE ARKE 8,702,749 7T RMBS,288,333 to RMBS8,702,749

(10,000,001 87T % 10,500,000 /& 7T.) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
AR®9,117,166 TE= AR¥ 9,531,5827C  RMB9,117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 /&7TE 11,500,000 & 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
AER# 11,603,666 T= AR 12,018,0817T RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
(14,000,001 8 7CE 14,500,00087T) (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000) 1
3
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEHIE Current tax
PE R EMEH PRC Enterprise income tax
AFE Current year 966,194 1,294,663
VARTEEE (%) DR (Over) Under provision in prior years (37,532) 10,518
928,662 1,305,181
ERNER Hong Kong profits tax
rEE Current year 5,109 2,293
EERE (it 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EEREDZERERFE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (35,891) (116,825)
BAEENHEZHEB AR Effect of withholding tax on the net
A] %%HE?’FIJ;EJ%@%EIZ distributable earnings of
AR the Group's PRC subsidiaries 175,090 234,327
139,199 117,502
REFEBIARE Total tax charge for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976

RERETTHARARANEKEEZ
WA BUAE IR IR -

H E20229F %2021 128318 1k
FE  BENEHSIRBRAFESH
FIEFTETE R o TERARFS IR K §
ET BB EEMNE20085TH
15 128.25% (2021 4F : 8.25%) Y
FRREF - 200 8B LA ERF)HE
15 3% 16.5% (20214 : 16.5%) H) Fi
KR o

REBENHEAR  HPEMSZER
BRMIET B X B25% (20214 -
25%) o IRIBFBI B - R BEH
RERNEZHEEMHCENLTEE
A RFABCEMSHRBERNAE)
(BFEREP A 2020 8 2358 ) » U
FaaEbih @ AN IR E 2 - HE B
HEENZEBRAGEERRALN
60% A (20214 : 60%) * 52021
F1A1HE20304F12H318 7
PEBERIE 15% BB BB R 2
Frisfi o Bt - AEEETRE
(@ 2 MY B A AR R A 15% (2021
fF 1 15%) °
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%
(2021: 8.25%), and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2021: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice
(Announcement of the Ministry of Finance [2020] No. 23)
on the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and National Development and Reform Commission, foreign
investment enterprises located in the Western Region of the PRC
(the “Western Region”) with over 60% (2021: 60%) of principal
revenue generated from the encouraged business activities are
continuously entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in the Western Region are entitled to an
income tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%,).
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NEE 7 BRSO E A E R IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERMAT - for the year as follows:
BERY HE Reconciliation of tax expense
2022 2021
ARTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A5 A A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
BRRBUEERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20214F - 25%) in the PRC (2021: 25%) 1,037,201 1,452,161
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (31,830) (30,456)
TR Non-deductible expenses 78,834 14,492
EEARBUA Tax exempt revenue (33,379) (58,905)
RNERIEE 12 Unrecognised tax losses 71,304 73,407
REREREER Unrecognised temporary differences (6,222) (5,835)
HBRBE W ARFERILIARE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (35,043) (81,983)
RAREE PR B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
NAEAHSEFE 2 profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TARBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 175,090 234,327
WEBAE 2 HkER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (143,015) (180,198)
LARTEE (%) VIR EHE (Over) under provision in prior years (37.532) 10,518
Hith Others (2,438) (2,552)
REERIBERL Tax expense for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976
A B AR 2 RINEEBIER SR A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on PRC
% /) A B B B A R 2 B USUR & T subsidiaries in the Western Region, additional deduction for certain
BONETHIRR - HMBWEES - expenses and other tax relief.
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

@) AARKRERKEEEE K (a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB'000

EE BRI KRS Final dividend proposed after the end
FRELE/ARBE23.36%  of the reporting period of RMB23.36 cents

(*2021 4 : (*2021: RMB33.76 cents) per ordinary share
AR#33.767) 1,316,156 1,901,241
EEREREIR IR Special final dividend proposed after
KEGRERRARE the end of the reporting period of
23.36 (%2021 4 - RMB23.36 cents (*2021: RMB33.76 cents)
AR#33.767) per ordinary share 1,316,156 1,901,241
2,632,312 3,802,482

2023438278 M € %
EFEREAREFIRARE
BREBRARKE23.369 &
REBREBEERERBRARE
23369 ° R E AR R
BRI ERGRE T BN
RPTRBENKRE - position.

RER - HRIFPHREFRE
B A R 44389 (%2021 ¢
AR®EA4.435 ) B #E & MK

3 £ AR 2,500,000,000 7T RMB2,500,000,000).

(2021 : A R % 2,500,000,000

JL) °

* LB iR A REE IR * Comparative figures are re-presented in RMB

250 EEEERERAE
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At meeting held on 27 March 2023, the directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend and
a final dividend of RMB23.36 cents and RMB23.36 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial

During the year, special interim dividend of RMB44.38
cents (*2021: RMB44.43 cents) per ordinary share was
approved and paid, totaling RMB2,500,000,000 (2021:
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(b)  AAFE NI Mk 2 55 B A R (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
HHRFEE FARRNGIREZ ES to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
&2 year:
2022 2021
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RZF R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
PRI ERBME  financial year, approved and paid

BRE @K during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(%2021 4 - per ordinary share

AR 36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,132

RAFARHENIKESE  Special final dividend in respect of the

NI ES RS previous financial year, approved and

NEAIR B BT R paid during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(*2021 4 : per ordinary share

AR#H36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,131

3,802,482 4,062,263
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H BVl F50HRRMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:
() BRERGF (a) Basic earnings per share

2022 2021

RNATIERARAREELM  Profit attributable to ordinary

A (ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 2,632,312 3,802,482
BEITEBR 2 N Weighted average number of
TR E(TIR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,632,791 5,627,083
BRREAGEF (ARESD)  Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.73 67.57
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2022 2021

AN A E B EFEISE T Profit attributable to ordinary
(ANREFT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 2,632,312 3,802,482

B IEFE (%)  Weighted average number of

(F42) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
E#EITE BRI Weighted average number of
FHRE ordinary shares 5,632,791 5,627,083
RNAGERAERTE 22 Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 2,694 5,251

BRETESREEEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

TR N T8 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,635,485 5,632,334
FREEZM(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.71 67.51
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

DREE At fair value

REH] At beginning of the year 1,807,100 1,771,700

NABEZEE Change in fair value 25,100 35,400

REEHR At the end of the reporting period 1,832,200 1,807,100
(a) AEEzREMEHE  BIF (@) The Group's investment properties, which consist of

HMRAYMERFEESUREES
THE R AR E ST
BI7TIE R #% 1678 5% & 1686
55 DA K2 AP B K03 T A BT B
B EH AN R AR
A -

AEENEERERHEEMR
EENETREESME  F
HEBRI1EIF BN
THHAJE 18 VAT IR 2 48
B

KEZEMEZHSWAFB
IR B BT MAR M EE 3(m)

HEARNEERHNARHER
mRZEEZS  BRAKE
—REeFTUHEERE  Fit
TR SYRENE
EEmEREE - HRKEEZ
RN EEZ A REE
H o

commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 1-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a)

(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HEZARFRBENKZEH
BT °

(a)

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2022 2021

AR#FT ARETFT

MN12A831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1FRN Within one year 43,652 47,981
F2HF In the second year 28,177 38,653
FEIF In the third year 3,761 20,942
75,590 107,576

DRBEFEMFTER

TEREMEEMENAREBE
B AEBENEER DRSS
EELEABOGEMETH
B - BEEABYEXEER
WEEMZEDNEE  BYEE
B (B BT LA R A (B AR A /) 2
B8 A o AERKREE AL
R EEE AT H (20214 -
W EAR(LIE) ©

R EAROEGES - BX
MEMARIELBEUNMISHE
E2EAEHEMENNE
T RITBUM RO EMBHE
RIBRFEFTE - BT
BREEXRDE2EHERMH
ZiE UM EBREMEN
Wi - BRI G ([E A0 AT AR
AR X AN SER =
AEREMA - REZRYHLIAML
BF  HRTIHENEEZ
EHB™S LA S Z A LB H
EXSEL - BEEEVERIR
BER WENESLREER
BREBRAR -
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(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison
approach (2021: income capitalisation approach).

In income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all
lettable units of the commercial properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well
as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the
yield rates observed by the valuer for similar properties in
the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge
of the factors specific to the respective properties. In direct
comparison approach, comparable’s average unit selling
prices are referenced to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties
is their current use.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

AEBzREEEHENATL
BEAENHEEAABENSE
3R RAFEEARNREEHE
BEEHA3RARHIBEL -

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

BERE R EEES R

The following table gives information on significant

HEHAEEAT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
2022 2022
IR Y: PN
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEB#H A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EERRE  WaERNMOER
BB RN HEHIE
BEG Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct

properties and
car parks in
Shanghai and

comparison approach

TEHA

The key inputs are:

e B4 A B 5% EEHBLUAAAL  BANE FANRBENDRELE
REESREMNGENEER Lt @<REUBHED
OB BRAVEREESHNE AREETHK RZTA-
SRAEXELED R RALTS% K
4.75% @ ERZR DRI /5.00% %=
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  An increase in the reversionary

account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 4.75% and 4.75% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

REMEE HEETREEHA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EXATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABA®EA
HAAEENBR
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

256 EEEZERERDE
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BEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZHENENREZ - 015
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T AR HEEETE
FRHRDBREARETIOTEA
R#1MN30TRARK3.0TEA
R¥4.937T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.30
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.93 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  wHELERYEEY
ERFzRAMERNEE - hmk
KN EBERREEFELNE
AmsHED R ARK2750T
MAR®E15.237C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.50 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB15.23 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
ogcREUEHENDR
REBELFT RZFA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) ARBESENIGREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
T A &R A
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREZEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEBEH A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
HRTFHENLEE BAYE

ZRIME PHARHBEEANE HRIHENEELERL
EYERGHENEMES . b8 A @REUEHEND
RREMRBDEURTHENE ABELF RZTA-
BIRBIARDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,300 T R AR
#16,530 TE AR 18,2457T ©

Comparable’s average Commercial properties

unit selling price Comparable’s average unit selling  An increase in comparable’s
price, taking into account the average unit selling price
location, size and other characters  would result in an increase in
between the comparable and the the fair value of the investment
commercial properties, ranging  properties, and vice versa.
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,300
per square meter in Shanghai and
from RMB16,530 to RMB18,245 per
square meter in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIME KN REREBYE
BYERGZHENEMER - L8
ERE2BEFESNERTHEN
EEBH R AARE 156,800 KA
F#100,0007T °

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling
price, taking into account the
location, size and other characters
between the comparable and
the commercial properties of
RMB156,800 per unit for car park
spaces in Shanghai and RMB100,000
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2021 2021
TABAME A
HBARBEENBE
REMEE HEETREZHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques EXRFAEAR®E A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EERRE WaERLE
B A A Income capitalisation
BEG approach
Commercial .
properties and EEHA
car parks in The key inputs are:
Shanghai and RG] EIEE ZRIESUWABAL BRAME MANEBZRNEHREXER
Tianiin REESRAROARNEERN LA ESRAMEREN
OB BRAVEREESNE QAREETHK RZTA-
2R XE LED R AR5.00% K
4.50% » ERZR D HI/5.00% %
6.00% }.3.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  Anincrease in the reversionary
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account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 5.00% and 4.50% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) AABENENVGREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
T A &R A
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREZEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEBEH A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
BmniEe BAYE

ZERINMHE MBEREREANE FANBETHREEEE L
EMEAFIAMNENREZ 15 A 2SREUFHENR
MEkFE - FEARXEEAVES ABELA RZFA-
AmSES ARALERETE
FARDBREARET20TEA
R#1M40TRARK306TTEA
R¥4.907T -

Daily market rent Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into  Anincrease in the daily market
account the time, location, and rent used would result in an
individual factors such as frontage increase in the fair value of the
and size, between the comparable investment properties, and vice
and the commercial properties, versa.

ranging from RMB7.20 to RMB11.40

per square meter per day on lettable

area basis in Shanghai and from

RMB3.06 to RMB4.90 per square

meter per day on lettable areas basis

in Tianjin.

FES

ZEIINMHE B RERMERY
ERFzRMERNEE  mhmk
KN EBERRZEEFELNE
AmSET oA RARK27.297T
RARE1617TT

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.29 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.17 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.
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B
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances RERE HRIE
Freehold g and and Miscellaneous Construction st
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hiia) (Hih)
(Note &) (Note b)
FEEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2021512316 year ended 31 December 2021
LEE
REA At beginning of the year 119,203 7552562 12,457,192 29,600 1.311,598 464416 21,934571
AE Additions 39,145 215,207 6,048 1,023,563 1,681,531 2,966,094
RE-WE-F Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary
HEAT 57,148 2,775 3 37 113 81,830
ERAER Transfer upon completion 84143 1128171 3,483 236340 (1,652,137) -
g Disposals (54,837) (94,175) (1473) (56,034) - (206,519)
HE-HENBRE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (160,948) (248543) (197) (18365) (1153) (439,585)
ik Depreciation (498373)  (1,793,141) (9,99) (525,845) - (2,827,355)
EizE Bichange differences 358 7) (14) ) (19 992
REER At end of the reporting period 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 482312 21,510,028
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2025128318 yearended 31 December 2022
LEE
REA At beginning of the year 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 482372 21,510,028
hE Additions 42,128 275,660 9,674 1,096,640 1,561,524 2,986,226
ERRER Transfer upon completion 367,008 858,382 7719 405297 (1,638,406 -
it Disposals (58,637) (117,135) (1,576) (85,508) - (262,856)
HE-HBENBLE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(W) (Note 41) (43,981) (3,210) (182) (321) - (47,694)
e Depreciation (503.836)  (1,728920) (©776) (693919 - (2936451)
ERzE Exchange differences 6,592 (1,435) 4 5 6,519 10,164
REER At end of the reporting period 7020072 10,968,781 BIT 269722 42000 21,5947
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EE
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances RERE HRIE
Freehold B and and Miscellaneous Construction it
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR ARETL ARETT  AREFT  AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(fiita) (Hih)
(Note &) (Note b)
R202F1818  At1January 2022
RE Cost 119918 12,340,115 32,649,807 162,350 5,762,384 4823712 51,516,946
ZEMERMGEEE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5120917)  (20,964,368) (134276)  (3,787.357) —  (30,006,918)
BHFE Net carrying amount 119,918 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1,975,027 482317 21,510,028
R2022%128318  At31December 2022
RE Cost 118357 12535499 32,704,998 162,522 6,500,888 412,009 52,434,273
ZHTERMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5506,427)  (21,736,217) (128,545) (3,803,667 —  (31,174,85%)
BHFE Net carrying amount 118357 7,029,072 10,968,781 3977 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
FaE - Notes:
(@ ETHRRLUNEBAIIKAERE (@) The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.
i e
by NREEH XEEETHRENEER (b) At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
HEEFRANEERBEERTZ certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
THBAESRREMEAES  BEEEE carrying amount of RMB34,509,000 (2021: RMB38,893,000) have
4 EE B AN R # 34,509,000 7t.(2021 not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
F: AK#38,893,0007T) ° = land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
RE NEBASKXEBEURERE Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.
LLRREEY) -
() FER - REBEELHFHERKRD () During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation

EBERAEELLFE - AEES
BEERCAEEBRLEIEERNK
BESORE R EERA - NEEY
REEEEMRAAE - £ESRE
B RIEN Y - BEE N REETT
RERAT

plan for both instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset
activation through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to
improve operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. The
Group carried out the impairment review on the property, plant
and equipment which have been idled for a prolonged period of
time and technical obsolescence with comparably low production
efficiency.
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ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
BRURF
HELHZ
T fE AR
Land use HEER
right in Hiti% 5
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other Ek ]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
REEHE- Reconciliation of carrying
HE2021F amount - year ended
12A318ILEFE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
NE Additions 14,482 273,242 9,231 296,955
BEET Lease modification — (19,766) (316) (20,082)
& Disposals (18,786) — (18,786)
HE—-HENBAR  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (53,976) (9,896) (122) (63,994)
e Depreciation (99,436) (201,104) (6,268) (306,808)
REEH At the end of the reporting period 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
REE R Reconciliation of carrying
HE2022% amount - year ended
12A318LEE 31 December 2022
REF] At beginning of the year 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
NE Additions 115,111 179,261 10,204 304,576
HEBA] Lease modification — (23,404) 5,085 (18,319)
hE Disposals (14,351) — — (14,351)
HeE—HEWMBARAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(Kigtar) (Note 41) (15,486) — (15,486)
e Depreciation (98,877) (215,218) (8.352) (322,447)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
M2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022
DN Cost 4,260,555 678,903 22,562 4,962,020
ZETiNE Accumulated depreciation (957,320) (302,230) (10,729)  (1,270,279)
IREFE Net carrying amount 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
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ERAREEE) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BRLRF
HETH#h
T
Land use R
right in Hiti%
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other wEE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
720224 12831H At 31 December 2022
DR Cost 4,342,883 664,470 29,283 5,036,636
REE Accumulated depreciation (1,053,251) (347,158) (10,513)  (1,410,922)
HREFE Net carrying amount 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714

AEBAHEEEMHEESRTY
¥ OBEEREMRE - BENT1E
AZE304 -

PRI R E

BN KEHMEE -
FFELBALE BRIEREEE
ERHAKEER  MAKENT
HEREGHRBEE -

REHEMS AKEEAKEH
MERBETHRN  YREERE
WSS A R R IAR KM R -

TEESER

TERE AR EZSHRE TR
AR REEEERRED
SEHRERENH -

ERRKILEER

AEENIODEFZHEARES
REREIEEE - BERAER
EAREERBE ISR Ui
FrEE LR o

The Group leases various properties, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.
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HEAE Lease liabilities
2022 2021
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEAE Lease liabilities

ENER Current portion 155,665 159,520
IEREE D Non-current portion 145,448 195,519
301,113 355,039

REEREECHERIATHA

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2022 2021
AR¥ETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
FEMHE Short-term leases 153,225 147,452
REEEE Low-value assets 3,985 1,356
P8R 2 F 2 Expenses recognised in profit or loss 157,210 148,808
WIEAR TS FIR 2 A] &  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEAAN) not depend on an index or
MEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 46,695 58,497
RIEREER AR Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 203,905 207,305
BREEEA IR Mm% Total cash outflow for leases 433,993 413,978

HEAE

720229128318 AE£EEB &
BEMARBZBEBKSERINE
¥CHESH - mAZMABMEKR
MREEEERCHEEREN KA
AR #3,387,00070(2021F : AR
#22,029,0007T) °

MN2022F 128310 AEEF D &
¥ A R 41,900,000 (2021 £F -
AFR#33,922,0007T) 7 MEIFE o
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Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB3,387,000 (2021: RMB22,029,000).

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to
RMB41,900,000 for short-term leases (2021: RMB33,922,000).
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KE R AT #
BTk R Water
Concession resource @t
right licenses Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEYR Reconciliation of carrying
—#HZE2021%F12831H amount - Year ended
HFE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 147,430 18,238 165,668
NE Additions — 17,086 17,086
B Amortisation (4,853) (2,660) (7,513)
HE-HENBEAT Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries — (17,159) (17,159)
b 53R Exchange realignment (2,112) — (2,112)
REEH At end of the reporting period 140,465 15,505 155,970
REEYE Reconciliation of carrying
—-EZ2022%12H31H amount - Year ended
IHFE 31 December 2022
REY] At beginning of the year 140,465 15,505 155,970
B Amortisation (5,098) (1,581) (6,679)
fE AR Exchange realignment 13,189 — 13,189
REEH At end of the reporting period 148,556 13,924 162,480
M2022%1A41A At 1 January 2022
DN Cost 187,296 17,086 204,382
BT E Accumulated amortisation (46,831) (1,581) (48,412)
140,465 15,505 155,970
72022 12831H At 31 December 2022
[B#N Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
RETEESH Accumulated amortisation (56,540) (3,162) (59,702)
148,556 13,924 162,480
BEEER 265
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SRR A RN 201263 AXK
BHEMES ZHHEERE - et
REERTAEENRE K-
B DHMHER FWMEKMK
ERERBER  URERPEX
PE B0 45 E B AR 1 YR AR AR - L P AR
REEHMIRZH9FH BER
VAT IR

KERTAIEREEPERRANE
EE AL @AV SRR - %R
FE10E15F (20215 : 108204 )
WA B ARE#ESY o

BREERBRAEAFELE L
B EDREETRERR

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 15 years (2021: 10 to
20 years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7R & BRE{E Cost and carrying amount
M2021F12 H31 B K At 31 December 2021 and
2022% 12 A31H 31 December 2022 97,910 97,910

BEEANRER REEBMNHH
REERLERTEERAER K
i ERMEEEEEOES S
BRI - EEMETERE
BoRER RAEMTTEAH
MENEENERFRE BB
BB A EMAEHR o
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Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2022 2021

AR¥ T ABREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

/4T Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEBEFEENEE((RARS
BEAEMDIER 2017 FWERMNE
Ea LR ERAR(HIMNE =R
28 1)25% MR B E o RR20224F
12A318  REELEMMEET
LONESREERN  FTERRARS
EXBEMHIKRESE- - fFERR
BEFEMENTFRMBEEYN
RemEEA - BBSFHREAE
BAELA2% (20214 : 2%) &) K H1E
REHEEHR - EAEREIRER
HEAMITELRTER - W EBA
BITEMNFHRAERE -

KmReELEMREEMREE
WA e REeEREE
LA E R BORIE -

ARFEEREENEIE2RRMNE
AIT -

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS"”) in 2017.
At 31 December 2022, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the board of directors
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
have been extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 2%) long-term growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2022 2021
ER = Gross profit margin 34% 36%
TR RE Average growth rate 7% 9%
RAEfIE R = Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
rRE Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAERRLREY MG H
ROBHETREENE - FAES
MATIR R BT AT - R BR E AR 3R
TELEVARNSTRR -

BriEEsRmBReEE BT
EEB2BERIN RABEREEL
TREBEAEMAIETET LT

BRI ZEH -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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MR2022F 12 A3MBEZEE AT
2B A T HREM 47 -

BEEAMBRRRAFERALE
BRFKAEES -

EERERDHRRER ZHELRMN
MBER

TRINRASEE-RBEERDH
BREREEOME A F - BRAE R R
ERAR QAR ER R ) RE
MEARMNER - HMBERME
REANBE R RIFEEHEA 228

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are shown in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”) and its subsidiares,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

n2022 F M2021 4

12H31H 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

DEESIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
LHEEME ZIEERLH]  Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%

n2022 F M2021 4

12H831H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR¥FT AR For

RMB’000 RMB’000

MENEE Current assets 15,311,416 16,462,352
IERBEE Non-current assets 19,537,391 19,491,174
mEAE Current liabilities (17,736,722) (17,848,960)
EmBEE Non-current liabilities (2,826,824) (2,480,529)
FHEE Net assets 14,285,261 15,624,037
LER R R AR TEE Carrying amount of NC| 3,366,287 3,695,634

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BEER () material NCI (Continued)
HZE2022% HZ=20214
12H31H 12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue 48,335,730 44,801,936
IRk A Profit for the year 1,821,686 2,418,652
HEi2m(BE) ke Other comprehensive (loss) income (566,298) 87,992
FHEWEBEE Total comprehensive income 1,255,388 2,506,644
D H RS R AE (R A Profit attributable to NCI 443,522 581,185
DR R ERIENS Total comprehensive income
FHENERE attributable to NC| 318,410 600,626
B SRR RS Dividends paid to NCI (616,818) (466,244)
S (FR)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
LEEE) Operating activities 2,205,630 3,440,271
WEEE Investing activities (3,151,987) (2,764,733)
BEEE Financing activities (1,411,914) (160,982)
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2022 2021
AREFTT AEWEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
LT - HKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
FERIE R A Share of post-acquisition results 126,840 110,632
B U B W F Dividend received since acquisition (104,202) (86,463)
93,316 94,847
PNEE HEE AT ZBEAEEY T - Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEE/
Lt B rEEREZ
Principal place ERERERESILH
of operation / A Proportion of effective
BeENTER place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~ B
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
ERBEUESHBR A i US$16,000,000  38.96% 389%6%  HENEEHRR
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
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LA FEE N B IR R RS BRTELR The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
SRR D o the consolidated financial statements.
ERIFEEABE AT ZEBER Financial information of individually immaterial associate
TRV RANEBIRHEEZ EZRY 2@ The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
RIBEE R E NBIMATREEN share of results of an associate that is not individually material and
REBE(RZELE - accounted for using the equity method.
R2022 F 720214
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR F T ABRBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHREE Carrying amount of interest 93,316 94,847
BE2022F  HE2021F
12A831H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REEFEL Group's share of:
NE R A Profit for the year 16,208 20,060
Hh 2 Other comprehensive income — —
FHEHR B Total comprehensive income 16,208 20,060
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2022 2021

AR¥TFTT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - FERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 363,679 363,679
FEMRREE R A Share of post-acquisition results 1,109,102 997,992
B U BB 1% 5 B AR R Dividend received since acquisition (858,465) (736,508)
614,316 625,163

REEREGE QR CAMFNT Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
IEEE/
St S rEEREZ
Principal place BREREERLA
of operation/ FEMA  Proportion of effective
BENTER Place of Registered ownership interest held FE#7#
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
RERYAMERAF HE US$11,000,000  31.82% = 31.82% MIRKHEERZER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
LEREALRHERAR e US$28,120,000  38.96% = 3896%  EERHEHM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERAEUERHBRAR(EREE]) HE RMB150,000,000 = 62.33% = 6233% EEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FREFEEBERAA e RMB400,000 = 25% 5%  Rat BERRBES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

A EMAGERATIRERETIRR
EEAMBEHRET

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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ERFEAEGEARZHBEERN
ventures

TRIVURA SR EIZ # a % 2 {85 3F

ERBERAMAFREERASE
LIS

Financial information of individually immaterial joint

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

R2022F R20214F
12H31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEmREE Carrying amount of interests 614,316 625,163
HZE2022% HZE 20214
12H31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARETFTT AR¥For
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFEM Group's share of:
REE R A Profit for the year 111,110 101,764
HAth 2 H U Es Other comprehensive income — —
FHE AR Total comprehensive income 111,110 101,764
EERE AEBLEMENEXRD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
HENFE] . material to the Group.
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2022 2021
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ZFVPLEEMWESREEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REES — Investment funds (a)d) 254,349 626,707
— ETRAE S — Equity securities, listed (b) 194 194
254,543 626,901
EE FVOCI Designated FVOCI
—JE ET R ARE S — Equity securities, unlisted (o)(d) 158,518 137,317
413,061 764,218
Hist - Note:
(@) WEHESANRETESZE®RE T (@)  The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which

I REBHE B AN ERE T
ABOEURBRHOERETAT -
NEREBRsEENESS TR
BERMEAEM - REER 1B
BEGMARBELHEABEST

were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair value of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the

B E T BB AGHE - reporting period.
(b) EFHARAFELEHNQASEBEREHRA (b)  The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on

EBHRZ SN TISRETE -

FELEMBRARENARBEEEH
FEMRELBERS ARMGE-
N EEZEH ARK7,874,0007T
(20215 : E)ERAKRESHER
H(TaEm) -

SR AR EENEETERE
RBABERN G B BREN
44 o

a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly
valued by the respective investment managers at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB7,874,000 (2021: Nil)
were credited to investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling).

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of these investments are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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TREETATIEETIE

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

ETT us$ 361,183 715,939
AR RMB 51,684 48,085
Efb Others 194 194
413,061 764,218

2022 2021

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Rk Raw materials 1,884,416 1,493,137
£ 8 m Work in progress 97,772 97,433
ZURY SR Finished goods 3,272,404 3,080,907
5,254,592 4,671,477
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE Ws AR R Trade receivables
—$£=75 — From third parties 1,700,924 1,881,100
—AREZ EBREIEH - From companies controlled by
4L VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 23,584 35,890
—RNFREEN — From companies controlled by
KEK B KRBT the family members and relatives
SEAR VNG of the Company’s directors 2,798 1,396
—HENTE — From an associate 2,770 32,471
/N — From joint ventures 78,205 92,887
1,808,281 2,043,744

REBZHEHERNTNDAETLRE
HRTHHEZEERNEEZR30E90
X o

BRRURR(NBREREE) NS
HRRBEZAHMRRE KRR

The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

TR follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90Xk 0 - 90 days 1,686,700 1,920,716
90 KA+ Over 90 days 121,581 123,028
1,808,281 2,043,744

FRASERUEEREERRNE
HENER A M RAMIE43

R PRAREEZAARKIIE -

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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2022 2021
Mtat AR#FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

TERER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 150,186 120,345
TEfT R AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 21,135 9,335
FEFHBE R Prepaid value-added taxes 199,631 308,982
TEfS & BRI Prepaid operating expenses 1,354,605 1,225,570
JEUE X Loan receivables 25(@a) 140,000 90,000
W R 2, Interest receivables 25(b) 522,962 361,488
i Deposits 127,423 127,018
Hity Others 381,447 109,815
2,897,389 2,352,553

25(a) EWER

25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHEBA
AERTESTEMBEER
HEELERRZRE - T
EWEFAEERE AR+ =
MARNEERNFEEAS65%
F3.70% (20214 : 3.85%) °

ARREEEHUZETHR
BMEBRT _EARZHEK
B WEEREZEAZRR

EBEEEAHEREERT -

25(b) FEIRIE

FE Y 7 B 2K B R B E B E R
RITHEER ©
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Loan receivables represent the advances made by subsidiaries
of the Company to certain raw materials suppliers of the
Group for financing their operations. The loan receivables
are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from the end of
the reporting period and bear interest ranging from 3.65%
10 3.70% (2021: 3.85%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2022 2021
AREFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAE HAfF 3% Long-term time deposits 7,551,900 6,101,900
R{T#EEBR NI S Bank balances and cash 12,323,922 15,838,492
IEIRIRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 12,531 20,746
RITERNIBE® AT Total cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
REEHFHIRA1E3F - WK The long-term time deposits are made for periods of one to three
BRERNEHFANEEERA S - F years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B X B285%Z%4.18% 2 [@(2021 rate ranging from 2.85% to 4.18% (2021: 3.45% to 4.18%) per
F :345% F4.18% Z ) ° annum.
WHIETFERE FHEIE - EARHE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
AREB—RBIRESBRE (BRI trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
TIRITEALIEZ)NRTRE 2B bills, granted to the Group by banks.
2o
A EEeRERBENMS » /1T A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
FrLBEcHRSEEY 2 EEN equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
N flows is as follow:
2022 2021
ARYTFT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFRLIRE Cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
B REIEHITE R Less: long-term time deposits (7,551,900) (6,101,900)
RehReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,336,453 15,859,238
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RITEREREEFTATINEET

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

(1= currencies:
2022 2021
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 19,455,618 21,256,767
EI us$ 375,058 640,164
BT EUR 129 126
e NTD 27,610 38,461
Efb Others 29,938 25,620
19,888,353 21,961,138

BEAEEZIIERRBR REER
BRERE ISR M sE 43 FFl -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2022 2021
BER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

UEE FET  AEETR LG FEr  AEEFr
No. of shares Usso00 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000

AT Authorised:

BHR0.005ETZERR  Ordinary shares of US0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000

BEIRSR Issued and fully paid:

REA At the beginning of the year 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633 | 5,624,386,360 28,123 235422
REBRIEREZTZMRIA Shares issued under share option scheme 3,192,000 16 108 6,586,000 E)) 21
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,634,164,360 28171 23574 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633

R AR E R 0 3,192,000 B I% 4 %
7718 AR BB AN 2 513,192,000 i &
AR - BRER AR 29,154,000
7T HEh AR 108,000 oEF AR 2
TR A - T 45 8k A R 529,046,000
TR ARMDEER - 340 ARM
9,353, OOOEHaﬁ%HxﬁéF%ﬁL%é?t%
MEER ZERENSHEHER
*ﬂ‘ﬂxfﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ °
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During the year, 3,192,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 3,192,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB29,154,000, of which RMB108,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB29,046,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB9,353,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.
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2022 2021

AR TFT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REA] At beginning of the year 786,965 730,075
RIEEE NIRRT 213577 2 A% 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 38,399 56,890
REEER At the end of the reporting period 825,364 786,965

REBEFAEHSREED - QRN
HMEHETEROE  TwEABESHK
Hib A #ET > ERTROEME
MR EIEBERMEER -

B aERZERRREMSES
NERZHTE °

ENEGRARERREZBRT &
RAZBEER DK TRE
HEARRBRDIREBIDAENEER
ERBEBPEREAN 2 ER

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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RER
R56E RAEfR
Transactions (ERR
with (TwEm) nx
hhEEGE EREEE non- SMEREEE  hwestment  EfEER EhERR
Captal ~ Remeasur-  controling  Exchange revaluation Poperty  HEE  —REE  Shaebaed  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained %
reserve feserve fesene resene  (Non-ecycling) resenve reserve reserve reserve profis Total

ARETE  ARETT ARETL ARETT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT ARETL ARETT  ARETR
RMBOO0  AVBUOOD  RMBOCO  RMBUOD  AMBOOO  RMBUOD  AMBYOOO  RMBURD  AMBUOD  RMBUD  AUBUOD

R01E1R18 At 1 January 2021 400 (106,052)  (1,790,909) 98,994 27451 9,869 — 4938776 331354 16,637,344 20,147,227
TEEEA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 3802480 3802482
A2EREER) Other comprehensive
income (loss)
RERAEEZERE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - (4,260) — — — — — — — — (4,260)
ERZE Exchange difference
on consolidation - — — 271,991 — — — — — — 271,991

Rt2EUE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - (4,260) - 211,991 - - - - - - 267,731

REE2ERE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income

(loss) for the year - (4,260) - 271,991 - - - - — 380248 4070213
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEFT Contributions and dlstribution
BREERATNZIE  Equity settled share-
based transactions - - — — — — — — 5,075 — 5,075
IRIEERIE BIBTZRA  Shares issued under share
option scheme - — — — — — — — (13,693) — (13,693)
BRERH Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (61,853) 61853 -
BRERTEE 2020 FRER 2020 final and special final dividend
BRIRERE approved and paid - - - - - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BRERIEE 2021 £ 2021 special interim dlvidend
FAmEks approved and paid - - - - - - - - —  (2500,000)  (2,500,000)
EREREE Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 368,700 - (363700) -

- - - - - - - 368,700 (10471)  (6:869,110)  (6,570,881)

BEEZRY Changes in ownershyp interests
EEYATEY Change in ownership interests
HBAREERZY in a subsidiary without change
in control - — (9,181) — — — — — — — (9,181)

RANARRZRHBE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - (9,181) - - - - 368,700 (70471)  (6,869,110)  (6,580,062)

RANE12ANA At 31 December 2021 400 (110312)  (1,800,090) 370985 27,451 9,869 = 5307476 20883 13570716 17,637,378

282 EEEZERERDE
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808
Py 3 REEf
R5GE ERE
Transactions (FAEE)
with Investment ES
ROBEEE ERERRE non- SMEBERE revaluation  EfsfEEE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur- controllng  Exchange reseve  Property  HAEE  -BEE  Sharebased  REEA
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation Hedging General payment  Retained -1
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recydling) reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ARETE  ABETZ  ARETZ  ARETL  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
R202%15818 At 1 January 2022 400 (110,312)  (1,800,090) 370,985 21451 9,869 - 5,307,476 260,883 13,570,716 17,637,378
REFRA Profit for the year - - - - - - - — 2832312 263231
Efp2EuE (58 Other comprehensive
income (loss)
BEREHAME3)  Cashflow hedges ote 31) - - - - - - (147) - - (147)
ARBEHELL Remeasurement of defined
EftEHE3) benefits obligations (Note 33) - 836 - - - - - - - 836
KERAAEEIIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
A2 ERGERRY instruments designated as at
BEIALABEZZE  ROC - - - - 7874 - - - - 1874
ERER Exchange difference on
consolidation — - — (1,515,878) - — — — —  (1515,878)
Et2EUSE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - 836 = (1515878) 1874 - (147) - - = (1,507,915)
KEE2EHE(HR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 836 = (1515878) 7,874 - (747) — 832312 1124397
HRARRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
Contributions and distribution
Equity settled share-based
transactions (Vote 30) - - - - - — — — 52 — 52
Shares issued under share option
Riazz) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - - (9353) - (9:353)
BREXN Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - (61,359) 61,359 -
EREREE201RER 2021 final and specil
EHREREWEZ)  final dividend
approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - — — — — (3942523 (3942,523)
BRUERIRE 202257 2022 special interim dividend
approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - — — — — (2,500,000 (2,500,000)
Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 219,791 - (279,791) -
ARDAREZRHEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - - - - - - 29,7191 (70,190)  (6,660,955) (6,451,354
R02%E12831R At 31 December 2022 400 (109476) ~ (1,800,090)  (1,144,893) 35,325 9,869 (747) 5,581,267 190,693 9,542,073 12,310,421

Emrmka(EE)SHEAKERE
2021 2022 F ¥R BB R &
@o

No income tax effect arose from each component of other
comprehensive income (loss) in 2021 and 2022.

B 40 PR e
BHBELOFEDIREREHESZA
AEEBEE REHEARRRG 2

AT AR L -

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

B EER
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EfhERE

EfMERBIRESTEIBRF
RERMBEZEMRE  FBIR
RERE B SRR MIFE3(Y)

ROBRREZRZHE

HOHRRERR HHEEDRES
FFER BT E B E A T AR
mErFBERAEESNMEY - &7F
IBANRINERE WS BRERMIFE 3(Db) °

SHEREREE

NS 2 R M BRI T IR B
ARREBRBINERE Z GFTEHK -
FHIBIIRNER A M B HRARMEE3(n) °

REBMGERE

BREBHEBECTAIERD) DRE
BEAMBREELE IHEAME
1R B EFVOCIA R EBEZR FE
BRANSTBORER - #1575
TRERE B RER I FE 3() ©

MEELERE

WEEBHERBOEZLERT (H3R
BYMERBERENF)REBEEGHNY
X BELRE BNEAVBR
RWEIMMEFRREEHY X
KEREEE 2 EHAGIED -

Hinkfe

HhREEEETESRIAZAR
EBERFEHFEZEURD
i ﬁéﬁ?l\@zuﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ’]fﬁéiﬁ
ERBZINER R 2 WL
A MBWMRME 3K AEHZEER
EYHTEEBORERE
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Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties
when the existing properties become investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note
3(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument which is designated as a hedge of the foreign currency
risk associated with cash flows of foreign currency-denominated
borrowings in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for cash flow hedges in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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(a)

2008 FEE R AERT 8l (&)

BRACA N B R HEE © 522008
FTE| RAERARE 2 B b fE R
B EIMR T2 ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TR BB A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H(B12008
FI3IA20B) 2B BITROK
10% -°

REER ERTHEEBRE
B LRE IR B 143,726,500
R (20214 : 143,726,500
B+ BIBAR A RIRERMA AR
T 2008 5T &% B 2 TR

B12.57% (20214 : 2.57%) °

GHR2EELZ 200858 E
ERESES T ZANRS
BTRE(BEEITERKRITE
ZHERRE)  EEMATRTARKRZ
REARTESBBERTHH
REEITRMO1% - 2R 1%
AR TEERARRRA
o

%?f%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂ%%iki :
miTEE A DR () IR ERE
P4 T B OB S P S A U T
B (O EBREET B
510 & % B R B R F 1 UL
mE: RO EES Z
REEE -

ERENTEHBEESTER
E o MEBREZITEERETZR
BTHRZI10F - REBRE
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2021: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2021: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.



(a)

2008 FEE MR AERT 8l (&)

FEBTEHREMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [V B

20085t & A ERFAR
ANENBARIZIEERES
ZHEBREFBRR2022F K
202112 A31THEERZ &

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the

employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries

pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share

options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

TR T as follows:
B’y
BREHE
Number of  RITEMNBERESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
20083 A20H 11,760,000 — — 928 201343 H21H=
20 March 2008 20184 3 A20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
2009 4 A 22 H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H23R=
22 April 2009 201994 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
20104 A1 8 15,044,000 — — 18.57 20154 H18ZE
1 April 2010 20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
201154 H12H 17,702,000 — — 19.96 20164 H12BE

12 April 2011

20214411 H
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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2008 FREIREEST 28I () (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
B®F
BREHE
Number of  RITEMNERESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
201254 H26H 9,700,000 — | 6,296,000 2054 20174 H26H=%E
26 April 2012 202244 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 6,854,000 7,766,000 20.16 20184 5H27H=
27 May 2013 20234 5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014547171 12,718,500 7,843,000 8,961,000 2238 20194 F17R%E
17 April 2014 20244 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 H5H 17,054,000 11,548,000 13,534,000 16.22 20206 H5HZ%E
5 June 2015 2025F 6 A4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 H4H 10,148,000 1,642,000 2,206,000 754 2021F7R48=ZE
4 July 2016 202657 H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
2017F 4 H21 H 11,420,000 7,280,000 9,450,000 1020 2022F4A21H=
21 April 2017 202754 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
&5 143,726,500 35,167,000 48,213,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMRHEsS(£) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

752008 3 8179 14 KT 68 2 B R
BRE BT A EE 2

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share

o Option Schemes are as follows:
2022 2021
In#EFH S
THEE 1718
Weighted Weighted
average BREZAE average EMREHE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B FR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.99 48,213 16.51 64,579
RERTITE Exercised during the year 10.59 (3,192) 7.99 (6,586)
AEREUY, 438 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 20.04 (9,854) 19.96 (9,780)
REEAR At the end of
the reporting period 16.71 35,167 16.99 48,213

RITEHR - FRITENERE
B INREF I IRE R 14.64 78 7T
(20214 - 14.88%T) ° £ #
SHN BEREFEBKRENE
% 4 B% 2 22 4,300,000 (2021
F 1 12,502,000) °

M2022F12A31H #H K
ITEERENNETARTE
#HRA2.229 (20214 : 2.90
F)e NEEH - AlITERER
T H9 I% 20 2 35,167,000 (2021
F 1 43,913,000) - B # B
B - AT1T{E A9 BE B i A9 hn A
BT (E B16.717%8 712021
F :17.65%7T) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$14.64
(2021: HK$14.88). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 4,300,000 (2021:
12,502,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.22 years
(2021: 2.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 35,167,000 (2021:
43,913,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$16.71 (2021: HK$17.65).
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BT AR A ET E1([2018 5T
gl)) - FHHRMBEBRE 10
F o Z2018:TEI N ABEAE
BREEWSERESHAEE
TEL BB R (G T ) MaRaL ©

EFEUREZEERTUTA
TR

(i)  ARF R SHEEN B
NCIPAERCIES B 31
B -fTRABRBHRA
B(BREATES  FH
TEERBIIFNTE
g R

(i) AARR KNS
A EALES - &
FoRNE RERE
R -

PR N B RR AL & - 220185
Bl RAFAR A A T 2 Ho A B i
FTEIFTE T 2 BEBRES R 2R
MEE NSBIBAR R B RN
it ElE B(R120184F 4 A 26
H)ZBETRMAI10% - R
“ER ERTHEERES
B 48 B8 I 4 58,104,000 % -
BARNTREMLARERT
20185TEI 2 H 2 TR B
0.14% o

BR2EELEZ 20185 8IHE
fEREF S TAZANRS
BEYBRB(BEDITEIRITE
2B - BEERRTEIRZ
1REARATFBAERTHH
REETBRMDH1% > 2R 1%
RBRHR T AR FRROHM
JE ©

290 EEEZERERDE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

EVBBRRREN T - as follows:
®F
BREHE
Number of RITENBEREEE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
2018 4 A 27 H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20214 A30HZE
27 April 2018 2028F 4 H26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
2018 4 27 H 5,626,000 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 2021F4A30HZE
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A 26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
a5 8,104,000 @ 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b) 2018 FEEMREE () (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEEYTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
wmr Option Scheme are as follows:
2022 2021
n#EFH S
TEE 1718
Weighted Weighted
average BREZAE average EMREEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERTITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RE AR Forfeited during the year — — — —
PREREUY, 43 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — — —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
TEEHRRN EFABEK No share options are vested during the reporting period
R R SR (2021 F - (2021: 6,263,000). None of the options are exercised during
6,263,000) - R N2 H BB IR the year.

RERATIE ©

MR2022F12A31H W K The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
TEERENINEEESS®RTE weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.90 years
#HR B 2.90F (20214 : 3.90 (2021: 3.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
F)o RNEEH - AIITHEEIR the number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2021:
7 1) B% 22 6,263,000(2021 6,263,000) with weighted average exercise price of
F 1 6,263,000) - INHEFH1T HK$16.18 (2021: 16.18).

£ 18 R16.188 JT(2021 4 -

16.1887T) °
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2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INESRERGH) - Foreign currency forward contracts —
HERELF Cash flow hedges (92,729) —

FA- AEEFTZBDINEERS
WIEEREHRTIA  UEHHEA
B4 &F 0 LA S B B B B 3R 2 S IE R
e TETAERNEELHAE
B TARKREIERE - LR
BHRNZEARGENITET A
TRRHEEIRDEE AEE
MRS REL A BRANGE
s R MsE 3(k) - BRARNAETET
ETEARBEZHBEXMTHER
HNER B MMM 44 -

HAESHHUBERARRRNTE

SINES A A S T A 3 K 5% B B AR

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign currency
forward contracts and designated as hedging instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risks associated with the cash flows of
certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings. Derivatives are
only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative
investments. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to
the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. The Group’s accounting policy
for its cash flow hedges is set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the information about the valuation
technique used in determining the fair value of the derivatives are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effects of hedge accounting on the financial position and
performance

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments

MEKRBOZEBET on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRHE{E Carrying amount 92,729 NA
H{E Notional amount 1,109,650 NA
EIH3 A HA Maturity dates within 1 year NA
FRIERERE HRENRIE  The change in fair value of the hedging
HEZEHTEAAEE  instrument used as the basis for recognising
ZE) hedge ineffectiveness for the year 159,882 NA
RIBRMETE 2 R EBME  Hedge ineffectiveness recognised
in profit or loss — NA
ARG E R T AETHRE  Weighted average contracted forward
B & N S 21— rate for outstanding hedging
AR 15T instruments — RMB:USD 1 6.45 NA
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B iEE Hedging reserves
AEEME P FHHENTEHPTA The Group's hedging reserves relate to the following hedging
1R - instruments:
EWEHEH
R A ZEHEHS HAEEERE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
ARMFT ARTFT AR¥FTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202261 H1H As at 1 January 2022 — — —
mn: REMEEmEKEIEF Add: Change in fair value of
RZEHAT A hedging instrument
NABEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — 159,882 159,882
n: REMEEmREFS Add: Costs of hedging deferred
PRI N TR and recognised in other
E D) N comprehensive income (26,912) — (26,912)
B EMEEUWEE  Less: Reclassified from other
BN BEEER comprehensive income
IR RETAEA to profit or loss and
F U EE included in other
net income 27,923 (159,882) (131,959)
1,011 — 1,011
W DER R s R
B Less: Attributable of NCI (264) — (264)
ARTRREMZ Carrying amount to owners
BRMEE of the Company
2022412 A31H  Asat 31 December 2022 747 — 747
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2022 2021

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

EIIRIRITE X Unsecured Bank loans 14,148,702 10,499,244
IR SR Unsecured notes 3,470,308 3,162,569
17,619,010 13,661,813

BREERHA RBREBEERBHEMN
RIS B B A SRR D AT (X 2
B (E (T iR B R AN EE R R E
o

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:

2022 2021

ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

1ER Within one year 9,203,139 7,311,444

F2HF In the second year 3,770,260 2,135,826
FEIFEFESTF In the third to fifth years inclusive

(BIEERE2F) 4,645,611 4,214,543

17,619,010 13,661,813

WHBAERSEELD Portion classified as current liabilities (9,203,139) (7,311,444)

JERENE D Non-current portion 8,415,871 6,350,369

EEEEH AR®S5,551,532,000
TL(20214F - A K #1,372,584,000
T)BE—RIEERRGE TEEAE
MEREeEEmBEMK LR+ @A
BAHONBERT  ERKBERE-
BEEEUVTEHAEEASTFEL
EANEXEE HEABENEEE
BRBAE -

EERBEZNEFHFNE A
2.57% (20214 : 1.47%) °

BEBERBHERATER -

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000 (20217
RMB1,372,584,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.57% (2021: 1.47%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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The bank loans are unsecured and certain of the unsecured
bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements
amongst the Group's entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$497,072,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,470,308,000) (2021: US$496,043,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,162,569,000)) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years,
inclusive. The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020
at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear
on 24 March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24
March 2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2022, based on the quoted market
price, was US$449,065,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,135,147,000) (2021: US$492,190,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,138,007,000)). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the

BB (2021 F « fF) o reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached (20217: None).

REBZERE D
BZAMHIRMT

BFTEXE@

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2022 2021
ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

[&] 7E F1) 2 At fixed rates 13,223,309 4,535,153
R | At floating rates 4,395,701 9,126,660
17,619,010 13,661,813

BRIEENTIEESIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2022 2021
ARETT AEBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 12,136,440 480,000
ETT us$ 5,482,570 13,181,813
17,619,010 13,661,813

5 0 9 B 51 LR R R
SR NBAREREMNEA3
B -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2022 using the projected unit
credit method.
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AREBHERTEEBAMFEFTEEZ The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
EEXWALZEMBRAER Z A position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
REREBEZEIHHOT : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2022 2021
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 79,920 122,166
KEFE RIS A Current service cost 3,656 (3,735)
LB R Interest expense 1,943 3,234
5,599 (501)
B4 Remeasurements:
B REFAEREE S Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
BE (W) 8 changes in financial assumptions (1,126) 3,187
KERTRAREE ZHERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 328 2,465
(798) 5,652
B & Benefit payment (15,695) (47,397)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 69,026 79,920
BEEENTERES The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2022 2021
% %
R E Discount rate 2.70 2.70
8 ER T B -1 Expected rate of salary increases 0.00 - 3.00 3.00
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REBAE (£) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
REER REBTERBERSNS The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
Brl e e E A TR E(E 2 BUH possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
EoNuT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2022 2021
RERF FEAET
B2t BERNEL
Change in Change in
EE: kX[ defined  REAE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Prif & Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.91%/ +-0.5% -2.93%/
+3.08% +3.10%
TE EA S BT 0 Expected rate of +/-0.5% +2.01%/ +/-0.5% +2.04%/
salary increases -1.92% -1.93%

iR ELSMERESEABER
HHMEREIREEEHRY  MEMAR
BRRFAE c HMI5ERR ML
1R b b FRER T B - S LB
AR EDITETA » TBEF B4
A ZAREERERAEETHIER
18 5 48 B 40 3 H R 765 AR A A 3B 5 R
ﬂ‘%}ﬂZZlR(ZZD ) A8 FEME
RERBAE ARG EARNFE KR
EEE’{J@&(@@En’fﬁ o

ATEANETCHMEFHEHRZ
6.10F (20214 : 6.104F) »

BELEAE - aEESREHER
EEERED6ORIIHHZAER
=Tl
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The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.10 years (2021: 6.10 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60 or 63
depends on the employee’s role and function.
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
HTEEAETEEERFTEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEETEERNESTHERT contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
FEHFELNER - L ARTIEAR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
KREFTEFEE A>T - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 18,874 15,924
BRI FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 5,285 9,660
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 8,959 10,582
FRiA 5 F Over 5 years 36,969 77,266
70,087 113,432
AREBFELEHRBAGEHEES The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
NN liabilities are as follows:
2022 2021
iifza AREFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 931,305 1,148,083
g — EBREG Additions - business combination — (746)
HEWB QA Disposal of subsidiaries — 4
WMEA RN ES B2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
2 TEIRR of earnings by subsidiaries (253,479) (333,538)
STAERE TR A Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 139,199 117,502
REEER At end of the reporting period 817,025 931,305
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REEH EIAZECHBEBEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
LEaEwmT reporting period represent the following:
2022 2021
iE afE BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBFT AR®TnH AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

MRS E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (512,383) — (574,183)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RNABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—FREEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - R KEE property, plant
and equipment — (33,468) — (42,859)
-BVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
—REMREHE — Investment properties — (36,355) — (30,117)
—¢@MIA — Financial instruments 152 — 152 —
BEEE Impairment losses 60,714 — 80,262 —
AEGHERZERER  Un-invoiced accrual 230,332 — 241,424 —
HEME  EER Unrealised profit on property,
BEZARERAE plant and equipment 137,683 — 151,083 —
WA RIR DB Withholding tax on undistributed
T2 TBIRH earnings of subsidiaries — (645,251) — (723,640)
BBER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 23,208 (31,814) 15,850 (39,434)

EEHRBEE(EME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 481,923  (1,298,948) 518,605  (1,449,910)

BIEPRDEMRER L IEHIEE Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
ERURPENINERE BEMRE withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
BRI B ELIB10% M KB TE investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
BB o ZRTER2008F1A1H#E the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
ER - EAMR2007F12831H % applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
S R2FT R B o i B IBUF lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
B2 27 AN & & & TR B 5K 3k b 1 I between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
REEEETNHE  TEARK

BE o
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AEEMAHHE QB HEARE
5% (20214F : 5%) - AEEIRE
EEBERAREHAEN R ERPHF
Ay M EmE A AR
HAE -

HEFHBTFME(RTFAHD A
TERRM B L A AR 183,811,000
TL(20214 © A K #183,811,000
o) BESEREAMMNTIIE - E
ERBBEAALEZESR T FHNEA
BUESEERARI v EEES U E
ARERTED B - A i I 1
BRAMEEF B o

REEHRN AEEEHBARE
111,128,000 T(20214F : A B #
111,128,000 ) Fi 7% E 1B R Ak
EHIBEE - BB BEERN
HZEBERELRAARAFHZ
Riskes - REZER - ABEREL

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2021: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the remaining
undistributed earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is
approximately RMB183,811,000 (2021: RMB183,811,000) which
would become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion
of the directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time,
are required for financing the continuing operations of these
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2021: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE BB EEIBRFHAT as follows:
2022 2021
RBEEIPR AR FT ABWEFT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2022 — 95,894
2023 53,354 66,382
2024 166,114 174,699
2025 222,947 286,318
2026 286,620 318,775
2027 307,610 —
1,036,645 942,068
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2022 2021
ARMFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
B=75 To third parties 7,964,787 7,420,951
BREAEEA T To related parties
—ARRAIZESEH — A group of companies controlled by
KEKE LB the family members and relatives of
) —4H A R the Company'’s directors 1,524,110 1,617,147
B & N Al To an associate 22 —
ERVAE] To joint ventures 989 8,420
9,489,908 9,046,518

ENE=F BREBAL BEQ
ALRAERRZEMNERAER
B RMA30E 90 KERHE -

The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
period of 30 to 90 days.

EAEIRNEENRBEEZEARIE Y The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BR B 7FJHZDT the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 8,591,071 8,364,033
90 B k Over 90 days 898,837 682,485
9,489,908 9,046,518
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The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

AR#¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 9,331,911 8,825,620

T uss$ — 1,458

BT HK$ 157,997 219,440

9,489,908 9,046,518

2022 2021

AR¥FT ARMFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR RS Deposits received in advance 2,731,272 2,070,566

B SERES Accruals for transportation,

BRZER promoting and advertising expenses 4,583,245 4,912,027
THEANKAEMEE Accruals for administrative expenses and

BR 2 TEIR other operating expenses 611,677 650,254

B TE REF & Salaries and welfare payables 874,839 947,298

FERTERME R Payables for purchase of equipment 115,337 241,143

FEA H A R IR Other tax payables 220,067 236,213

JEAT 7 & Interest payable 35,366 29,950

JE -t 8RR SR AR F Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 144 902

Hith Others 611,550 504,978

9,783,497 9,593,331

AR 305
2022 Annual Report ¥



H BVl F50HRRMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B4 A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
FMEER Interest expenses 446,021 223,494
B A Interest income (650,412) (783,501)
e Depreciation 3,258,898 3,134,163
WRAREBEYIEKREEZE Dividend income from financial assets
EENERMEERIET at FVPL and a designated FVOCI
BRAREEYRREEAM
2 EWEIREIEM S
TAZBRFWA (1,413) (2,522)
B EECBHE Amortisation of intangible assets 6,679 7,513
HEWE - W RRE Loss on disposal of property, plant
LERAEEE BB and equipment and right-of-use assets 60,288 29,527
REEFEHENNEE Change in fair value of investment properties
> g8 (25,100) (35,400)
BARBEYRENAERZRE Change in fair value of financial assets
BRENTHEEAD at FVPL
BEZE (10,099) 21,239
U g B W Gain on bargain purchase — (7,967)
HERB AR Z W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (105,992) (208,750)
FEREEE R R Share of results of an associate
SR NTIEE and joint ventures (127,318) (121,824)
[EREH) 2 Effect on exchange rate changes (314,870) 19,287
RINAE R EE RS Recognition of equity-settled
SN2 HIR share-based payment 522 5,075
FE &M Increase in inventories (583,115) (1,341,002)
FEURBR S 2 Rk A (32 00) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 235,449 (440,287)
TR FRIE R H f FE UL Increase in prepayments and other receivables
TRIBZIEAN (290,857) (609,702)
FETBR T2 3500 Increase in trade payables 443,467 962,435
Hi B HRIBERE Increase (Decrease) in other payables
WeiR4 7 1 CEi4>) and deposits received 312,570 (208,459)
EEEMZEZCED )  (Decrease) Increase in advance
payments from customers (771,260) 982,036
FEERETRMNEE Decrease in present value of
REZ R unfunded employee benefit obligations (10,096) (47,898)
KREEEFBRE Cash generated from operations 6,022,166 7,386,100
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37(a) METHELENABEHE 37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TRFAFMAEERKREGE TS The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
HNEEZE  BERESNIER arising from financing activities, including both cash and
@8 METHELANARE non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
BREREFAKESREE are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
BEREBGARESRERT will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
DEARERYELNIRER cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2

ERD8

RRRA

(Hfit 36)

Dividend

HEEE REARE payable

(Hit16) (HieF32) RITER to non-
Lease  Unsecured (#f#£32)  controlling

liabilities notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

MW2022%181A At 1 January 2022 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
FHEM Net cash flows

(HEL (i), (i) (i) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (230,088) — 2,643,408 (623,618) 1,789,702
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 16,121 6,967 — — 23,088
MRS New leases 169,206 — — — 169,206
HEBII 2 Effect on lease modification (9,165) — — — (9,165)
Rl Dividend declared — — — 622,860 622,860
EHER Exchange realignment — 300,772 1,006,050 — 1,306,822
720225128318 At 31 December 2022 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
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37(a) MEEBELNABHR (Z)

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

BT D&
AR B A
(Fi3E36)
Dividend
HEARE EEARE payable
Pz 16) (P3E32) RITER to non-
lease  Unsecured (Mf#F32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @ar
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
R2021E181A At 1 January 2021 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
FHEER Net cash flows
(W2 (), i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii}) (206,673) — 260,363 (463,040) (409,350)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BEFIS s Amortised interest expenses 16,578 6,513 — — 23,091
MERE New leases 256,738 — — — 256,738
G A% Effect on lease modification (18,735) — — — (18,735)
HEHBAR Disposal of subsidiaires (9,669) — — — (9,669)
e Dividend declared — — — 463,903 463,903
ERESR Exchange realignment — (71,948) (229,649) — (301,597)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754

() HEBBRFREALEF
AXNEEEEZARE &F

BEb e

I

(i)  WMITEFMAERE - RITR
Hoh & BB FROR - Kb
HEFFEE Y R BITEIE
MR 2 FG - BAEIE
ARBRRTERNFRE

==
JILEE °

3

(i) ENIOBRRORSNFESR
EREBRFAXINIHIRR
BBLE. -

308 EEEZERAERDR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(i) The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the

payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.

(i) The net cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans
make up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
repayments of bank and other borrowings, net movement of
other short-term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance
of unsecured notes.

(i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests

during the year.
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BRAARGAEEBHMIHEE R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRERELAIN NNy AREEES the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
AT ETZERATIBE - 1t following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERXRGTIRAEEZ BB ERRE of the Group's business.
17 °
2022 2021
Wit AREFT AEETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
() BEBALZRS (@)  Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
ARRZ EBRELH Companies controlled by a substantial
A& 4 VNS] shareholder of the Company 0] 119,643 142,813
il YN An associate 48,101 29,306
BER7 Joint ventures 886,955 859,768
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREEYZ A group of companies controlled by
REKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives
Z— 4R of the Company's directors () 6,386,373 6,534,137
i YN An associate 23,753 32,928
BERA Joint ventures 17,147 50,370
BTRAARZFRHER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4PN shareholder of the Company (i) 33,730 32,566
BT 5 ARKEK Y E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BRERH Joint ventures 6,503 1,770
|50 R IR E M Rental income from investment
EHERNE  BHER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARAZ FERRIEHZ Companies controlled by a substantial
4N shareholder of the Company 35,602 42,254
ERRZERYZ A company controlled by
FEK B RFBEHH the family members and relatives of
—ERAA the Company's directors 3,010 3,087
BT 5 AR X2 EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ALRREEYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives of
Z—HRA the Company's directors (i) 1,876,252 1,819,826
FiaE() AR LETRBIE 14AE  Z25H Note (j) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BREBA L2 RGN RFHERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
5 e Rules.
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(b) BREEAEZME

AEEHEREEABZME
(BRGAVBRERM T 10
BEAARBES  THAER
XN ZHERAE TR HE

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

BXM2ZHIB)AT : statements, is as follows:
2022 2021
ARETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=Yk Directors’ fees 4,127 3,512
e MEME Salaries and other emoluments 40,117 39,898
VARG 2+ 2 5/ 18 Share-based payments 471 2,813
14T Discretionary bonuses 19,733 17,250

BRE ST R{ETH  Retirement payments and

IRIRSETEIHERX contributions to pension scheme — 7,470
64,448 70,943

MHEAFRIBEER 2017 FRENINEE
] £ 25% P A B FE 15 S AR B R F
HEERE - HAFKARF AR

B R -

FANEREYHRELRE 155
MEFEHNBEMTERERRFF AR
MEE D ELRZEE) M

The amounts represented the contingent consideration payable
and remaining portion of the cash consideration in acquiring 25%
of HZPS's equity interest in 2017. The amounts are settled upon
the completion of registration of the equity transfer during the
year.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2022 2021

ARMFTT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 3,342,990 2,360,954
R AW A Recognised as revenue (3,342,990) (2,360,954)
WBIR RN EWHTERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,571,730 3,342,990
REER At end of the reporting period 2,571,730 3,342,990

MR20224 K2021F 128318 &
FRAZEBERRN —FARER AWK
AO
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At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the advance payments from
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year.
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FR AEEER="ZBIF=HF]
VEHEERE ARLESETH
BRAMNZHKRE - HEFEHEER
FRERK > TN EHER HE
M@ A R AR B 105,992,000 7T
BEEt ABREERPEMFRA -
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During the year, the Group entered into several sales and

purchase agreements with three independent third parties for the

disposal of the entire equity interests in several subsidiaries. These

disposals were completed during the year. Upon the completion

of the above disposals, gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of

RMB105,992,000 was recognised in profit or loss and recorded as

other net income.

The following summarises the aggregate consideration received

EENBENERAEAR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
#Em
Total
AR#FoT
RMB’000
FIHENFEE(ER) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - WRERRE Property, plant and equipment 47,694
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15,486
JE U AR X Trade receivables 14
TE A R IE I H h FE R IE Prepayments and other receivables 2,837
RITEBR MRS Bank balance and cash 2,618
FETER R Trade payables (77)
M RIERE YRS Other payables and deposit received (1,256)
67,316
HEWB AR (AZ8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 105,992
173,308
2RRE Consideration received
RERE Cash consideration 119,508
FElRE Deposits received in advance 53,800
173,308
HEMBARZRERAFEE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
ReERE Cash consideration 119,508
BEREZReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,618)
REeERFASEEYZRANTE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 116,890
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BEELENED  RRRREHEE
HRER/EMITNDEREN G -

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

AEEFERREFREGIRRE &
ReEEYAREHAEHERNESL
fEE)FENFEERER L E(E
RARBRREIEERA LX) A
REEN(BEMEEDRED) - A
SEAEFAEHEEALXFBIER
HEMERGAREE REERE
ARUFEEEE R AZE 2
BARGRE - REMREG L]

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group takes into
account of the long-term time deposits in calculating the gearing
ratio because the management believes that this calculation
reflects the capital structure of the Group more accurately. The
debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

(N follows:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 17,619,010 13,661,813
B RekBEeFEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and
M ERHTEHER long-term time deposits (19,888,353) (21,961,138)
FHIRE Net cash (2,269,343) (8,299,325)
NN E Y EREL E0 Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -16.97% -44.48%
AEEBRECEBNERLEHR The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital

EREHBIMERERER I
REBEEERAOECHBEE NG
EERABE
1% BITHEBALKRERAN LI
MMENHE  ZEMSEERNX
BE) o RRERNHMLERS -

B OABKRERS

2022 4F - AN £ [ A 5K BE H12021
FHRA BEBFEAGEEHESTIA

A o
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structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and

investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During 2022, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2021, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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AEBEFEAOS T AEEINE
BB AIRER - FERR IR
BeRR- - RREFSESREA
% BEERRARTORBRERY
K-EFERIUFAERAZEAR
BRHRMOT

SNERR

AEBHHMHBAREZAPBRK
g2 FTEUARBEZSEE - K
& B FrE R SMNE R R A BR AR A A
HEMBAR ZNEEE B LA - LA
HEBHEISHNENERASL
HERITESR BEEE- K
FVPLEZIEH) € B0 & & [ 175 R B

THR%E o

ARBEITHAIBBEETHEA
RARTHE M 2 5N E B S AR Bl &
Bl AREEOMBARNERE
BREMPNINEEEET  RNE
BELLEHNINERRTESX
RBEL- - FR AKELEN
SN R B A #) A S AN FHE (R
REHAINERR - $PEBFHB
AR A B MARMIFE3(k) k31 °

REBER20224F K% 2021412 A 31
HIASNE(JEAREE ) ETER L FVPL
EENEREE RekReFE
Y- BEBERENERFED
R A M mERMEE22 - 26~ 32
K350

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. During the year, the Group entered into
several foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency-
denominated borrowings. The details of the hedging activities
are set out in note 3(k) and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SNERB(E)

REEBR - WA EMEERET
g MARBEBET AR
HFEEaBERARESBRE TS
FH{E B2 1E4.5% - 0.8% 2 1.8%
(20214 : 7 B 20.9% - 0.7% %
2.5%)  ANEEEE N RRE &
g, m AR 4,341,000 7T
(20214 : AR 960,0007T) °

HREIMIIBRENEREEB L
REIMET  AERANZBBHF
EZzRAEeRIAZEBERBRER
B BMRM T3 F N EINEER
HE QeI ERRERZ

Rf) - AT A H B Bl 2 A
R)RFAE - S 2 BBHRRERE

B EINE RN RNET —F
EHEAZARENBEZE8 - ko
MTEZEEL 2021 FHEA) ©

FEER

AEETIEMHENNEARZRE
RITERLEEEESAEE@Y
MR - ZBFRIRITER LT
BHNEEEHEESAKRERERS
MEMNERER HRESMEE K
SENRBEEREEERRELEE
REEEEEEREEEERTHE
EE L -
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
4.5%, 0.8% and 1.8% respectively (2021: 0.9%, 0.7% and
2.5% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB4,341,000 (2021: RMB960,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date excluding the exposure arising from the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings that are hedged by foreign currency
forward contracts as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign
currency represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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FEER (E)

FR - AEBEWKRETEKRE G
B UEARERERAAEBEN
MERER - NEEH AEEEE
E Al & 2 fE R BT5% (2021 4F -
33%) °

Wﬁ:gﬁ W BT H B BRI
2 UETRAREBINEZRITE
ﬁ%&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬂﬁ"%l AR
€100 (20214 : 75) }0(2021
F:40)H B AFEREEGF
AR B & R A5 m 218 A R ¥
40,206,000 7T.(2021 4F = Ji >~ 4%
JIA B 3,029,000T) »

BRESMBREFNNERFALIRE
U EARAEERFATFTEZR
THHBRBEEENFERR - L
EXRAREIBEZRITEHREE
BEEE DR FHE100(20217
F :75) &0(2027#"40)%5’
REEBETGNERBARNET —
FEAHEAZARELREZEE - 1t
DHTEAEE 2021 FAER ©

FERR

AEENEERRIZERANEE
ERER ReMBReFED &
Yo BR R e EL A 8 U R IA o ZF’*@#(
HARMEMEINRE KRS
Tﬁ%i’ﬂT—EﬁlETﬁ?ﬁE’Jl&‘%iwﬁ%
BRXBEREENMBEHREE B
HEEEBRREL NMFEEANE
ER - RERE M EHIR KRR
@Eﬂﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ@(?ﬂ&fﬁﬂaﬁéﬁ)ﬁ
RAEENEERR  HEXLREE
PR B EMER A MEEIEE
HEME -

Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 75% (2021:
33%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 100 (20217: 75) and 0 (2021. 40) basis point
higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB40,206,000 (20217 decrease/
increase by RMB3,029,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the
year and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence
during the year. The 100 (2021: 75) and 0 (2021 40) basis point
increase or decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings denominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2021.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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EERRK (&) Credit risk (Continued)
JEW AR (42) Trade receivables (Continued)
R2022F K2021%F12A31H A The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
BENDBER RS ERRZAE trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
ERREECLHERMANT o 2022 and 2021 are summarised below.
7A2022%12831H As at 31 December 2022
BERTEE FEE R
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,615,680 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
E(FNA Within 30 days 57,228 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 70,932 No
#B38 90 X Over 90 days 64,441 No
1,808,281
2021512 A31H As at 31 December 2021
MREREE FEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired
AREFIT
RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,554,166 No
SEHERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 139,087 No
31-90k 31 -90 days 235,284 No
838 90 X Over 90 days 115,207 No
2,043,744
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2022 and 2021, the additional loss allowance for provision for
amounts due from these parties was insignificant.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 57.14% (2021: 66.67 %) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2021: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

1550 E 26N L

1R BE2FR  BESEAR

BEREHR  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but 5ENL

1year or within less than Over a5t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20225128318 At 31 December 2022

JE(T R R Trade payables 9,489,908 — — — 9,489,908

Hi R 5Ia R Other payables and
BlES deposits received 8,688,591 — — — 8,688,591
HERRE Lease liabilities 165,844 80,632 68,139 6,152 320,767
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,531,823 4,023,179 4,725,607 — 18,280,609
fTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 92,729 — — — 92,729
27,968,895 4,103,811 4,793,746 6,152 36,872,604
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REELER(Z) Liquidity risk (Continued)

1500 E KN

1FR%  BmER EESER

BRENKEHR  Morethan  More than

Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut S5EE

1 year or within less than Over Gl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

#2021512A318 At 31 December 2021

FEITEER Trade payables 9,046,518 — — — 9,046,518
HibENRIER Other payables and
BElAE deposits received 8,409,820 — — — 8,409,820
HEAR Lease liabilities 171,452 115,503 84,001 9,555 380,511
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,452,251 2221916 4324734 — 13,998,901
HEthiEa s Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
ERHARE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
25,130,000 2,337,419 4,408,735 9,555 31,885,709
EXMEeE—RETFTERALE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
BHEI TEEAEEEkKkEDE clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
TG HEEESBER N ® loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
BHEAIRERET|ER - BEE In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000
EWFEHESASTEELERE (2021: RMB1,372,584,000) as at the end of the financial period
SR REF - AR ®5,551,532,000 have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
TL(20214F : A EE#1,372,584,000 that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
T)RGEERE R AR EEE - % and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
LZEENEKBEREEREEER following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
T :
2022 2021
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERRE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 5,611,207 1,381,697
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2022 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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LAABHIBHNSHEEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
2022 201
HEIR fin 53 CH iGN gah #Al3 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBUO | AMBUOD  RMBUOOO  RMBUOO  AMBOOD
BE Assets
FRPLEEG2EEE  Financial assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds - - B4349 254349 - — 66707 626,707
- LTREES - Equity securities, lsted 194 - - 194 194 - - 194
EEROC Designated FVOC
-FLTRAES - Equity securites, unlited - - 1518 158518 - — BT 1313
194 - 412,867 413,061 194 - 764,024 764,218
Bf Liabilities
BRREESZEEE  Fnancal labilties at FUPL
~ERYERE - Contingent consideration payable - - - - - - 9,959 9,959
REx ! - Derivative financial instruments - 9,729 - 92,729 - - - -
- 92,729 - 92,129 — — 9,959 9,959

HZE2022F & 2021F12 A 31
HiIEFE BB EBEERN
HLR22E%BE  INEEIE
B®%eEE LR35k mRk53E
ﬁ °

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.

EgmEER 323

2022 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a)

URABEIRNEREERAR

(%)

HE2022F K% 20214F12 A 31
RIEFEREHEALBER
ENEALRIHNFMES I

(a)

(Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value

measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

T are shown as follows:
2022 2021
BE afs BE a8
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFVPLEE IRFVPLEE
MEmEE  EEFVOC MeREE  EEAOC
Financial ~ Designated Financial Designated
asset at FVPL Fvocl asset at FVPL Fvocl
¥t FEf ¥Lm fEfy
REES RAxEH GERE RERES REEH FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unliseted payable
ARETR ARETZ AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFI
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RER At beginning of the year 626,707 137317 (9,959) 558,177 140,444 (9,959)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 6,992 - - 103,187 - -
e Disposals (441,953) - - (1,528) - -
el Settlements - - 9,959 - - -
BRSBTS (BB)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
-E& ~ in profit or loss 10,117 - - (20,747) - -
-Ef2ENE ~ in other comprehensive
income — 1874 — — - -
ERES Exchange difference 52,486 13,327 - (12,382) (3.127) —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 254,349 158,518 — 626,707 137,317 (9,959)
REEAKEZEER  Change in unrealised
BEFABRNES gains or (losses) for
FERMED (FE) the year included in
B8 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period — — — (21,467) — —
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2021: price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair

value measurement (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Derivative financial instruments: Foreign currency
forward contracts

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts in
Level 2 is determined by the banks using present value
of future cash flows based on the forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.
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(a) HUAAEBHEIERNLREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
FTERTEERATENELLER Quantitative information of the significant
RERES & unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs
LR3AREBEFEZEZET The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
AEmEAFRANELLEE R inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
MRREZEHMT inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEBERAEE
KEERE
hEsENYE
RanE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group's total
Fair value TUERBANEBE LA EENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (RREMEZRETE) income for
wm HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation  FUBEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AIB000
BAPLERNERAE
Financial assets at FVPL
REES 24309 THERH  BREERRE1S% ERRMERENE  ADABEER RNA: 4-5% 4165
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
MHRAT ik AuEAA FamERES - ADAERER +-58% 421,940
BOHZ065( Rz
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
04310 0.65 times
FAEEEE MAEELMEBREARE FEEZMLABEER HTHLOAREHR e uwZec2n  HH-1981E
(T#EE) 426,863
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the  Ranging from Ranging from
value approach  liabilities (the "Net Assets”) higher the estimated fair value +- 14% to +- 52% +-7,981 to
+- 26,863
R Rvod
Designated FVOCI
kLIRS 158518 WEEEY  EHFERE15% EERMAREYS EDABEME RZAA- +-5% 45,04
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
T EATZ Hm % AuEA Ham RS - ARAEEER +-38% 444383
BOGSE R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companis of 0.65 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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(a) HUAAEBHEIERNLREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TERTEERAFANELEE Quantitative information of the significant
RERESEE (£Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREEE
AEERE
e
R % Impact on fair
12A3182 value and
MERE the Group’s total
Fair value TUBRBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (BREMRZRETE) income for
W ERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes AENTHEE the year
i AFEFT  Valuation  FUHEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
BRPLRENEREER
Financial assets at FVPL
RERE 626707 TEEEY REFERE% ERRMIREAS ADABEER  RHA: 4% +2,086
Investment funds PIS ratio model ~ Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THERR TmHE YRR PmERES  EALBEES +-50% +35,357
0650826 RZ
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.6510 0.82 times
FEEEEL MAEDAEERAE FEEZMMAABEER EFULABEER  A+H1%EH-%% 443 %
(#2&)) #1339
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the  Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabilities (the “Net Assets”) higher the estimated fair value +H1% to +- 9% +-423 to +-13,394
EEROC
Designated FVOCI
FIMRARS 131317 WHERE  BEEERE0 ERREMERENR  EOABEME k2R +-5% 4583
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
PGPS =S AEA HaT RS - ARAEEER 41-43% 471428
082f% R
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0.82 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2022.
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In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments

BRAGAETEREREMITMHIFE
ZHEYE  NEBBFTHEE

as follow:
B HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2022 2021
AR¥TFT AR FIT
EHENEES T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEME  HER Expenditures on property,
B3 plant and equipment 541,830 990,797

REBEARDENRERE - ARAH
B R R B EZ 2B IIRIAT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2022 2021
it ARETTT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
L E | Y Property, plant and equipment 247 285
EREEE Right-of-use assets 487 2,465
B A B R 2 Interest in subsidiaries 9,534,645 12,528,304
EIVPLRENESMEE Financial assets at FVPL 174,419 552,844
JEE R FVOCIBRIERY Equity instruments designated
= as at FVOClI 9,852 8,596
9,719,650 13,092,494
REBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEUWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 6,409 5,257
H 88 A 7] 2 FE WK IR Amount due from a subsidiary 3,282,153 2,956,640
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 283,435 385,439
3,571,997 3,347,336
WEE Total assets 13,291,647 16,439,830
BRREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RA R #E Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 235,741 235,633
& 1D @ E Share premium 825,364 786,965
s Reserves 46(a) 1,891,772 6,803,464
RERERAE Total equity 2,952,877 7,826,062
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2022 2021
Wizt AREFT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
EHEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 6,018,671 5,011,493
HEAE Lease liabilities 136 488
6,018,807 5,011,981
nBAE Current liabilities
E MR SR Other payables 34,335 29,459
BEEEEZREHIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 4,244,075 3,570,336
PTESHBITA Derivative financial instruments 41,175 —
HERE Lease liabilities 378 1,992
4,319,963 3,601,787
HwEE Total liabilities 10,338,770 8,613,768
BREZMEREEHE  Total equity and liabilities 13,291,647 16,439,830
REFFEAR N KRR 2023F3 A278E The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
ESMERBEESE  WHATA for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2023 and signed
THREEZ on its behalf by
2% Wei Hong-Ming FHE#E—EP Junichiro Ida
EZEDirector E&EDirector
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B3R R MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) HEE2EH (@) Movements of the reserves
#E
RiER NeBRE  EREGRE B
fife R (FuEE) Hndk Fife REER 4%
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- Hedging payment Retained
reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve Profits Total
A\BEFT  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
R0NE1R18 At 1 January 2021 400 512,889 1,666 - 331,35 3,090,791 3,937,100
RERGT Profit for the year — - — - — 9,335,229 9,335,229
TEREMAENE Other comprehensive income for the year - 102,016 - - - - 102,016
BREERGTAZFE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 5,075 - 5,075
REERETERTIRA Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BEiREET Shares option lapsed - — - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BERIRE 2020 554 2020 final and special final dividend
RERIRERE approved and paid - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BARRIRE 2001 £ 2021 specialinterim dividend approved
R and pd - - - - — 50000 (2500000
H2021F128318 At 31 December 2021 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,883 5925,610 6,803,464
R202%£181A At 1 January 2022 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,383 5,925,610 6,803,464
TEE R Profitfor the year - - - - — 2055455 2055455
TEEAMAENE Other comprehensive income for the year - (516,398) m 184 - - (515,793)
BRiEEROTA LR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 52 - Ly))
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (9.353) - (9.353)
BRELY Shares option lapsed - - - - (61359) 61,359 -
BHERIEE 2001 £ 2021 final and special final dividend
RERRERE approved and paid - - - - - (394253)  (3942503)
BB RIRE 2022 F RIS, 2022 special interim dividend approved
and paid - - - - — (2,500,000 (2,500,000)
H2OnE128318 At 31 December 2022 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,772

M2022F12A31H

ZANIVN

AR DB EHEEEREB T
EEHhaBrzeB R AR
2,425,265,0007C(2021 4 -
AE#6,712,5750007T) °
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RMB2,425,265,000 (2021. RMB6,712,575,000).
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BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

T EEARAA R BEELEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXFEWNBLAR  EERAEZEZN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
A AEEIWRZEEKRER - 4 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KRAEEEEENEEL D == portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
REFHVNNEMHBATMER S giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiELEK ° excess length.
Rl Ay
8 EEiE HMER/BERIRA JEfk R fl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# ik
Directly Indirectly
REEFRDERLA HE US$72,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* INERRRARAA hE US$151,500,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co, Ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RBERRAARLT R US$17,000,000 - 100% RERHESRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERRGARAA HE US$17,800,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REEHRAARAT hE US$44,300,000 - 100% SERHESRE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERERGERAA hE US$14,200,000 - 100% SERHENREE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BRERRRARAA hH US$6,862,700 - 100% BERHEHRE
* Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REBEANRRRERAT hE US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd. noodles
HEEERRARAT R US$3,000,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Xinjiang TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RAB(ER) HERRERAR HE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
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HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Y/
£ EXH &R/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TAEERMARAR e US$29,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RARERRARAR EF US$17,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
* Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RABERNERAERAT T US$5,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Master Kong [Chonggjing] PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
* PHEERRARAR PE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RYRERMARAR G US$21,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEEREFERARRA) PE RMB15,000,000 - 100%  fREEERE
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management Limited *  PRC Provision of management service
OB RERAFEERAT EP US$227,500,000 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERRARLA PE RMB37,000,000 - 100% BEERHERSH
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
RAEHREVIERAR RERAEE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
EERRERARAR REHS US$10,527.37 30.40% 4751% RERR
KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
RHOXEEED (L) ARLF G RMB1,000,000 - 7191% REEERE
KSF Beverage Management (Shanghai) Limited* PRC Provision of management services
* RERRARBRA HE US$60,840,000 - 7191% HERHEERD
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMNEZRRA] i US§20,000,000 - 7791% HEREESR
Guangzhou ngJm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRMAN G US$73,500,000 - 7791% HERHEESR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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L/
£ EXHY ifEs/ BRTRA JEfE RAELL Bl IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E% }:3
Directly Indirectly
ERERRMARD hE US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERW
Chongging Tingjin Food Co, td. # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEREARARL i US$15,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZARBRL i US$13,700,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERARERAT i US$16,176,500 - T191% RERHEERD
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
AERRARBRA i US$10,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Hefei Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERRRARLA i US$12,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARD i US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERW
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAEZRMARD HE US$16,000,000 - T191% HERHEERD
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LRERARERARAT i US$15,000,000 - 7191% REEERH
Shanghai Kang Yun Corporate Management PRC Provision of management services
Limited*
FHEEDRARAT i US$41,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N i US$48,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
" REBRERRARAT hE US$31,800,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARD i US$36,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BN mARAR i US$59,300,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* (Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RS (SEAERRARAR G US§12,000,000 - T191%  RERHEHKR
* Master Kong (Wulumuqi) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BYRRARARL i US$28,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* LANGFANG TINGJIN FOOD 0., L. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
*ENERRMARD HE US$41,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Y/
£ EXH ifEs/ BRTRE EiEREL A IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E% [}:3
Directly Indirectly
* NERRRARD i US$38,100,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREERMARAA hE US$27,000,000 - 71.91% BEREEAR
Jinan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERERTAD G RMB7,300,000 - 791% #ERm
Shanghai Kong L|ng Food Co, Ltd.* PRC Sale of beverages
FOERRREGEERAR EP US$272,486,800 - 7191%  RERR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
RHERLR (BE) BRA &k US$129,736,518 - T191%  RABE
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRAERAT i US$358,216,517 - 191% RARK
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. # PRC Investment holding
BEHE (EM) BRAF i US$197,800,000 - T191% BERHERR
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBZTEHHARLA i US$66,650,000 - T191% BERHERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERBEERHARLA i US$14,119,449 - 5064% BERHERR
* Bejing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERFARSHERAA G US§20,000,000 - 7401%  RERHERR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
REBZTEBHARLA G RMB100,000,000 - T191% RERHEESM
Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RARFAHARA G US$6,600,000 - T91%  RERHERS
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEEHHARLA i US$1,350,000 - 7191% BERHEERR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERAEARHHARLA i US$17,845,000 - 1354% BERHEEAM
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFU BEVERAGE PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
RBETEBHARLA i US$12,250,000 - T191% BERHEERR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RMEFARARERAR G US§10,400,000 - 5843% RERHEAR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
SV EELES LI G US§28,000,000 - T191%  RERHERR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

336 EEEZERERDLA

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



%

s

FEBTEHREMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [V B

BHZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el IERK

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# 3
Directly Indirectly
EAEEDES Aer] N EF RMB19,764,000 - 7191% BEREERE
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEHE (8 ARLA G US$9,000,000 - 5454% BEREERD
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited® PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RZBENEHFHARLR G US$5,000,000 - 77191% BEREERD
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N EEHHARLA G US$21,000,000 - T191% BERHEELS
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited* ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRERETANEARLA G US$35,000,000 - 7791% HERHEESR
Harbin Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHRERRLA RERLES US$147,232,000 - 100% REZR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEIBEARARAR EBRARES US$1 100% —  REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERAFERERARLA G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENFEERH
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
* ZEMBRREMATIINEGE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
VEIRZE © companies.
# R R AR # English translation for identification purposes only.

HAG AR S B P BRI 2 f B A R SZ
N A2EI e hE

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-
owned foreign enterprises.
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Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEREBFERBE18HPIRES 4218
Tel |35 : (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 170 to 337, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,259 million at 31 December 2022. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2022 was RMB10,969 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the
impairment review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the determination of
the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB254 million and
RMB159 million respectively at 31 December 2022.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or fund administrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2022 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: PO5132
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Independent Auditor’s Report NI S —
Fax {§H : +852 2810 0032
To the shareholders of www.mazars.hk

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 170 to 337, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Mazars CPA Limited
FERIS(EE)GEMEBRERAS



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB21,259 million at 31
December 2022. Of which, the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at 31
December 2022 was RMB10,969 million. Any impairment of those assets identified may have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and external sources of information,
including but not limited to technical obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with
adverse effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic performance of an asset
was expected to be worse than expected, to assess whether there is any indication that machinery and
equipment may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The carrying amounts of the assets will
be written down to their recoverable amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on machinery and equipment by estimating
the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGUs”) to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable amount of certain individual assets
with reference to their fair value less costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration of the indicators of impairment
and the determination of the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation to management's impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment included:

a)

)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of impairment of machinery and
equipment with management and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery and
equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing whether management had performed
impairment testing in accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by the management in calculating
the impairment charges and the judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets

belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow model used in the value in use
calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the food and beverage
industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future production plans and approved budgets
and assessing the reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making reference to the market price of an
active market, if applicable; and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of the impairment assessment.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and equity instruments
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”) classified
as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are RMB254 million and RMB159 million respectively at 31 December 2022,

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines the fair value of these FVPL and
Designated FVOCI with reference to the valuations performed by the investment manager or trust
administrator of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation techniques, in
particular those that used significant inputs that are not supported by observable market data and are
based on assumptions that are not supported by prices from observable current market transactions. The
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible
alternative assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the valuation of these
financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as a key audit matter because of their significance to the consolidated financial statements and the

judgement and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements.



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to the valuation of these FVPL and
Designated FVOCI included:

a) Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment agreements of the financial assets;
b) Obtaining and understanding of the Group’s valuation process;

c) Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and assumptions adopted by the
investment managers or trust administrators;

d) Discussing with the investment managers or fund administrators and challenging the reasonableness
of the assumptions, key inputs and underlying data used; and

e) Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity analysis.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information in the 2022 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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